
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   



 
 

Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
Meeting of the Board of Directors to be held online from 11am on Friday 25 
September 2020 
 
 

Agenda  

 
 
3.2020.01   PRELIMINARIES 
(a) Present   

(b) Apologies  

(c) Minutes of the previous meeting of the Fèisean nan Gàidheal Board For Agreement 

(d) Matters arising  

   

   

3.2020.02 DEVELOPMENT ISSUES 
(a) Progress in implementing Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s Programme of Work  For Noting and Discussion 

(b) Summer programme and the months ahead For Noting and Agreement 

(c) Staff Progress Reports For Noting and Discussion 

(d) Getting to know the organisation: Presentation by Abi Lightbody Verbal for Noting and Discussion 

(e) Creative Scotland Funds: Tasgadh and Maoin nan Ealan Gàidhlig Verbal for Noting 

   

   

3.2020.03 FINANCIAL ISSUES 
(a) Income and Expenditure 2020-21 For Noting and Discussion 

(b) Bank balances and up-to-date information  Verbal for Noting 

(c) Management Accounts to 30 June 2020 For Noting and Discussion 

(d) Grants to Fèisean 2020-21 For Noting  

(e) Annual Accounts to 31 March 2020 For Agreement  

(f) Auditors: Confirmation of Mann Judd Gordon For Noting 

(g) Funding Agreements For Noting and Discussion 

   

   

3.2020.04 STAFFING ISSUES  

(a) Up to date information Verbal for Noting 

   

   

3.2020.05 OPERATIONAL ISSUES 
(a) Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Plan 2018-21: Annual Report For Noting and Discussion 

(b) Programme for 2020 AGM and Conference For Noting 

(c) Annual Report 2020 For Agreement 

   
   
3.2020.06 OTHER 
(b) Confirmation of date of the next meeting: 11 December 2020 For Noting 
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Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors held online via Zoom on Friday 
22nd May 2020 from 2.00pm 
  

 
2.2020.01 PRELIMINARIES 
(a) Present 
 Anna Murray (Chair), Anne Macaulay, Carola MacCallum, Colin Sandilands, George Stoddard, 

Katie Macinnes, Kirsty MacDougall, Sarah-Jayne Shankland, Angela Mack, Alistair Paul, Siobhan 
Anderson (Creative Scotland), Arthur Cormack (Attending), Anne Willoughby (Attending), Eilidh 
Mackenzie (Attending), Calum Alex Macmillan (Attending), Luke Slater (Attending) 
 
Simultaneous translation was provided by Angus Macleod. 

  
(b) Apologies 
 Morag Anna MacLeod Mitchell (The Highland Council), Mairi Buchanan (HIE), Rona Gold (Argyll & 

Bute Council) 
 
Anna Murray welcomed everyone to the meeting, especially the two new Board members Carola 
MacCallum & Angela Mack. 
 
Condolences were offered to former Chair of Fèisean nan Gàidheal, Kirsteen Graham, following 
the death of her mother. The Board requested that Arthur Cormack write to Kirsteen to pass on 
their sympathy.  

  
(c) Minutes of the previous meeting of Fèisean nan Gàidheal Board 
 Minutes of the meeting held on 6 March 2020 had been circulated. 

 
The minutes have been approved as a true record of the meeting, proposed by Colin Sandilands 
and seconded by Katie Macinnes. 

  
(d) Matters Arising 
 • Arthur Cormack informed the Board no further progress had been made on the paper on an 

Economic and Social Impact Study on the work of the Fèisean. Due to expected pressures on 
funding, it may be wise to consider the position later on in the year. The Board were happy 
for this to be set aside for the time being. 

• On the topic of buying a van for Fèisgoil & FèisTV activities, there isn’t a need for one 
currently and, when appropriate, we will look at this matter again. 

• Carola MacCallum and Angela Mack had both undertaken a Board introductory session with 
Arthur Cormack the day before the Board meeting. 

  
 

2.2020.02 DEVELOPMENT ISSUES 
(a) Progress in implementing Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s Programme of Work 
 Arthur Cormack informed the Board that the majority of Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s programme of 

work up to 31 March 2020 had been completed. The one outstanding piece of work was 
development of digital resources but this was also now on track.  
 
The Chair raised a question about the International Folk Network. Arthur Cormack said we were 
involved in the original set-up of this and a seminar had been held in Brussels last November.  He 
is hoping to take part in the next online meeting. 

  
(b) Staff Progress Reports 
 Progress Reports from staff had been circulated and Board members noted their content and the 

Chair thanked everyone for their hard work.  
 
Eilidh Mackenzie informed the Board that Fèisgoil is still busy, with a lot of schools involved 
online. Drama videos created by Angus Macleod are now online. It was noted by both the Board 
and the team that Angus Macleod had done some fine work.  Nothing was being delivered 
through Blasad Gàidhlig in Falkirk and Glasgow at the moment.  
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150 participants had taken part in Café Bheairteis sessions to date and it was noted that the 
uptake for other #cleachdi events was looking positive. 

  
(c) Getting to know the organisation: Proposal for online conversations 
 Anna Murray had proposed that online sessions between the staff and the Board would be a 

great way to get to know the whole organisation. Arthur mentioned that members of the team 
used to give presentations at Board meetings so the Board could get to know them and their 
work.   
 
Anna Murray suggested that as we may be in a lockdown situation for the foreseeable future, 
keeping in touch would be essential.  It was agreed online sessions would be progressed 
although Anne Macaulay, while agreeing it was a good idea, thought more pressure on the team 
should be avoided.  She was also aware of broadband restrictions at home.  
 
Calum Alex Macmillan mentioned that the Inverness team held regular morning meetings and 
Board members were welcome to join them at any time. It was agreed that this was a good 
opportunity.   

  
(d) Additional support to Fèisean 
 Two papers had been submitted to Board members by e-mail with proposals to offer support to 

Fèisean and goodwill payments to tutors affected by the cancellation of activities.  Although the 
majority of Board members responded with their approval via e-mail, Board members were 
happy to confirm their approval of the recommendations in both papers. 

  
(e) Current and future events 
 The CEO presented a paper to the Board to inform Board members of alterations to Fèisean nan 

Gàidheal’s programme over the past two months and proposals for the months ahead. In line 
with many arts and Gaelic organisations, we had to rethink how we deliver our programme. 
• Discussions began with Bòrd na Gàidhlig and Comunn na Gàidhlig in April regarding a 

programme #cleachdi aig an taigh, to support Gaelic medium pupils, some of whom are in a 
situation where they will not use Gaelic unless in school. 

• Calum Alex Macmillan showed a sample online Fèis schedule and gave a verbal outline of 
plans for summer activities. This included live classes online for all skill levels and age 
groups.  

• The whole team met recently to work out how they could collaborate with the Fèisean over 
the summer holiday period to ensure some activities at the time the Fèisean would be taking 
place.  

• We will continue to plan for Blas in November but may need to look at an online festival if 
public events are still not permitted by that point.  

 
Board members discussed proposals for the online programme and approved the content. 
 
Ceòl nam Fèis Digital Books 
Arthur Cormack gave a verbal outline of the project and a demonstration on how the digital 
books work. 
 
Oide 
Arthur Cormack showed the website tv.feisean.org to the Board, giving a demonstration of how it 
works.  He informed the Board that currently the site is free to use during the lockdown. 
 
Board members noted both demonstrations and agreed that they were both good resources. 

  
 

2.2020.03 FINANCIAL ISSUES 
(a) Revised Budget 2020 - 21 
 A revised budget for 2020-21 prepared by Anne Willoughby and Arthur Cormack had been 

circulated. 
 
This was approved by Board members. 
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(b) Income and Expenditure 2020 - 21  
 A report prepared by the Executive Manager, Anne Willoughby, had been circulated showing 

income and expenditure with transactions to 30 April 2020. 
 
This was noted by Board members. 

  
(c) Bank balances and up-to-date information 
 The current balances were: 

•  Current Account - £8,046.59 
•  High Interest Account - £383,376.59 
•  Blas Account - £910.09 
•  Development Trust - £8,465.07 
 
The sums were noted by Board members. 

  
(d) Management Accounts to 31 March 2020 
 Management Accounts to 31 March 2020, prepared by Mann Judd Gordon, had been circulated. 

 
The content was noted by Board members. 

  
(e) Balancing Funding to 31 March 2020 
 Arthur Cormack gave a verbal report on the normal practice adopted by Fèisean nan Gàidheal of 

reallocating grant and other monies not spent by Fèisean over the year. 
 
This was noted by Board members. 

  
(f) Grants to Fèisean 2020-21 
 A list of grants pledged to Fèisean for 2019-20 had been circulated, with amounts paid out to 30 

April.  
 
This was noted by Board members. 

  
(g) Funding Agreements 
 
 
 

A report by the CEO updating members on the status of the organisation’s main funding 
agreements had been circulated.  
 
Arthur stated that Rona Gold had confirmed funding of £18,450 from Argyll & Bute Council. He 
also highlighted the flexibility of the support from Creative Scotland, Bòrd na Gàidhlig and HIE 
during the Covid-19 lockdown. 
 
Board members noted the up to date position in relation to funding agreements. 

  
 

2.2020.04  STAFFING ISSUES 
(a) Up to date information 
 • A warm welcome was extended to Luke Slater who joined the team in March. 

• It was noted that Laura Nicolson would be going on maternity leave soon and her workload 
would be dealt with in-house for now. 

• The CEO said he would like to place on record his thanks to the whole team who had to 
adapt to a different, and sometimes challenging, working environment over the past couple 
of months. Everyone’s resilience and willingness to do things in a different way has been very 
encouraging.  

 
The Board agreed with the CEO’s statement and noted the other staffing issues raised. 
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2.2020.05 OPERATIONAL ISSUES 
(a) Annual Risk Management Report 
 
 

A report by Anne Willoughby had been circulated, updating Board members on the management 
to risk within Fèisean nan Gàidheal.  
 
Given recent events, primarily Brexit and the Coronavirus pandemic, two additional risks had 
been added to the full register. 
 
George Stoddart raised the risk of a technology ‘pandemic’.  Anne Macaulay agreed that this is a 
potential risk. Everything is working well at present, due to technology, but if that were to fail it 
would seriously impact on all operations.  
 
It was agreed that this risk would be assessed and Board members noted their approval of the 
way risks are managed within Fèisean nan Gàidheal. 

  
(b) Conference 2020 
 The Chair suggested we follow a similar routine to previous years, albeit conducting the 

conference online. Anne Macaulay suggested the conference all takes place over one day. The 
Board agreed.  
 
Anna Murray suggested putting on a Zoom cèilidh with previous Fèis Bharraigh participants. 
Possible guest speakers were suggested.  
 
The date for the AGM was confirmed as September 25th 2020. 

  
 

2.2020.06 OTHER 
(a) Confirmation of date of next meeting 
 It was noted that the next meeting would take place on 25 September 2020.  
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Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
Progress in implementing Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s Programme of Work 
Agenda Item: 3.2020.02(a) 
 
 
Reason for paper 
To update members on progress with Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s Programme of Work for the first quarter of 2020-21 up to 30 June 2020. 

 
 
Background 
This report covers the period above, and outlines progress against the performance indicators - or outputs - set against measures within Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s (FnG) 
Programme Plan by our main funders - Creative Scotland (CS), Highlands & Islands Enterprise (HIE), Bòrd na Gàidhlig (BnG), Highland Council (HC) and Argyll & Bute 
Council (ABC) - in agreements with those bodies. 
 
We use a ‘RAG’ system - Red, Amber & Green - the status of each of which is as follows:  
Red Not presently on track, and measures to restore progress not yet in place - danger that targets may be missed 

Not presently on target, but with measures in place to restore progress 
On target 
 
In addition, the following colour coding links each output to Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s Programme Plan 2018-21: 
 

Amber 
Green 
 

 Support and Development of 
Fèisean 

Enhancement of Skills & 
Creative Talent 

Enhancement of Gaelic Arts & 
Culture in Creative Learning 

Audience Development 
and Engagement 

Governance and Staffing 

  
Ref  Programme 

Plan 
Measure 

Progress Status 

Creative Scotland Ambition 
Excellence and experimentation across the arts, screen and creative industries is recognised and valued 
CS1 Funding for new developments through a Fèis Development 

Fund. 
 No payments have been made to the end of Q1. 

£5,000 is earmarked for Fèis Bharraigh’s 40th Anniversary celebrations, but not paid 
as yet. 

 
 

CS2 If funding allows, strategic support for Fèisean wishing to 
expand and sustain a year-round programme of work. 

 With additional support from the Scottish Government, we have funded an 
additional programme being organised by Fèis Bharraigh to celebrate its 40th 
anniversary, much of which will now be postponed until 2021. 

 
 

CS3 Support for new and experimental work in the Gaelic arts.  A whole range of new Gaelic arts activities were organised by Fèisean nan 
Gàidheal’s team and delivered online in the period between the Easter and 
Summer school holidays as part of the #cleachiaigantaigh initiative. 

 

CS4 Support for new Gaelic song writing.  We have a new initiative – Bothan nan Òran - which will be delivered in 
August/September. 
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CS5 Opportunities for artists to develop writing skills through new 
commissions. 

 We have advertised a commission for a new Gaelic song to add to the traditional 
ones published weekly as part of the 2020 Coasts and Waters project. 

 
 

CS6 The organisation of an annual Gaelic Drama Summer School.  In common with much of our programme, the Gaelic Drama Summer School will 
take place online in July under the direction of Lana Pheutan and Angus Macleod. 

 

Everyone can access and enjoy artistic and creative experiences  
CS7 Regular funding for Fèis activities through a Grants Scheme 

for Fèisean with a commitment to paying tutors MU minimum 
rates if sufficient funding is available. 

 Grants to Fèisean were agreed by Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s Board in February.  
However, the majority of them have not been paid out due to a lot of activity being 
cancelled or postponed due to Covid-19. 
Instead, grants totalling £69,927 have been paid to Fèisean running classes online 
and we will be collaborating with local Fèisean to ensure there is Fèis activity 
available each week of the school summer holidays. 
The majority of the funds committed to Fèis grants will be retained to ensure there 
are funds available to support the Fèisean in re-establishing their work once that is 
permissible. 

 

CS8 The lending of instruments for free use at the Fèisean from 
our Musical Instrument Bank. 

 Demand for instruments has been low in this quarter due to most activity having 
been moved online and our offices not being manned. 

 

CS9 The central administration of a PVG scheme to ensure 
protection for children and vulnerable adults. 

 This continues to be done centrally and we continue to carry out disclosure checks 
for individual Fèisean.  20 were processed to the end of Q1. 

 

CS10 Provision of additional financial assistance, where required, to 
ensure access for those with additional support needs. 

 Additional funding is available on demand for carers and/or additional tutors to 
ensure access for young people with additional support needs.  No Fèisean have 
required this support to the end of Q1. 

 

CS11 Regular engagement with local Fèisean through Lead 
Officers, an annual conference and regional gatherings, as 
appropriate. 

 Our team of Development Officers have worked extremely well in communicating 
regularly with their portfolio of Fèisean to ensure they were being properly 
supported during the Covid-19 crisis. 
Our AGM and conference is expected to held online on 25 September.  

 

CS12 Drama workshops and programmes with Meanbh-Chuileag 
(Gaelic medium or Gaelic related). 

 There has been no Meanbh-Chuileag activity to the end of Q1.  

CS13 Gaelic language work at Fèisean with Sgioba G.  No such assistance has been required to the end of Q1.  However, the whole 
#cleachiaigantaigh programme was delivered through the medium of Gaelic and, 
where needed, assistance was offered with terminology. 

 

CS14 Development and delivery of a series of early years Gaelic 
medium arts activities including music, song, drama and 
puppetry. 

 Early Hùb Hàb activities were offered live online as part of the #cleachiaigantaigh 
initiative. 
A collection of Hùb Hàb song videos have been recorded and made available free 
online through FèisTV. 

 

CS15 Mini-Fèisean in schools and communities to ensure 
knowledge of and participation in Gaelic culture 

 Due to Covid-19, the mini-Fèis in Portree High School was not held in Q1 as normal.  

CS16 Continuation of support for local Fèis performances.  Some Fèis concerts performances were streamed online during Q1 but there will 
be more during Q2 which will take in the school summer holiday period. 

 

CS17 If funding allows, continue to run a Traditional Arts Small 
Grants Scheme on behalf of Creative Scotland. 

 We have received confirmation that the Tasgadh fund will be available again in 
2020-21 with an additional £35k from Creative Scotland.  Deadline dates have not 
yet been set due to Covid-19 restrictions and we expect to make some changes to 
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the guidance for applicants to reflect the reality of delivering arts projects while 
restrictions remain in place. 

Places and quality of life are transformed through imagination, ambition and an understanding of the potential of creativity  
CS18 Continue support for local organisers paid through 

Annualised Hours as part of our Grants Scheme for Fèisean. 
 As is the case with grants detailed in CS7, these funds have not yet been disbursed.  

CS19 Assistance for community groups wishing to establish new 
Fèisean. 

 There has been no enquiries from groups to the end of Q1.  

CS20 Participation in initiatives that will lead to employment for 
young people in the arts and creativity. 

 Our annual Cèilidh Trails will not be run due to Covid-19.  However, we will be 
running Fèis Alba in July online, with sessions for young people on dealing with 
issues of employment versus self-employment and music rights. 
Young singers taking part in Fuaran will be paid for the rights to their performance 
and recordings of the songs collected and learned. 
Many of our tutors, or shadow tutors, are young people who rely on employment 
at Fèisean.  Over £120k was paid to artists who lost work as a result of the Covid-19 
lockdown, many of them young people. 

 

CS21 Organisation and development of the annual Blas Festival 
including a new commission and expansion into new areas. 

 Blas is being planned to take place in November this year, culminating in St 
Andrew’s Night on Monday 30 November. 

 

CS22 Residential opportunities for Gaelic arts and community 
activities delivered in Gaelic. 

 Residential opportunities this year had to be cancelled due to Covid-19 restrictions.  

Ideas are brought to life by a diverse, skilled and connected leadership and workforce  
CS23 The continuation of strategic and practical support through a 

network of Development Officers each with a portfolio of 
Fèisean. 

 Each of our Development Officers has a portfolio of Fèisean they support.  The 
team is flexible and they assist each other at peak times as well as taking the lead 
on certain projects.   
The team got involved in developing a range of activities, including Gaelic singing 
sessions for all ages, sessions on gnàthasan-cainnt to enrich young people’s 
vocabulary, a programme of Gaelic medium musical instrument lessons and a 
series of talks related to Gaelic culture all as part of the #cleachiaigantaigh 
initiative. 
With the cancellation of some Fèis events, the officers were especially busy 
working with the Fèisean to ensure payments to tutors who lost work due to the 
Coronavirus outbreak. 

 

CS24 Development and revision of policies that should be adopted 
across the Fèis movement to ensure high quality organisation 
and provision of arts activities. 

 Fèisean nan Gàidheal continues to develop a range of policies, most of which are 
available for adoption by individual Fèisean.  Several were revised over the past 
year and this work will be continuous.  

 

CS25 Provision of insurance giving Fèisean public liability cover and 
cover for all aspects of their arts activities. 

 Insurance is provided for all Fèisean as part of their membership package which 
covers all risks relating to their activities. 

 

CS26 Regular training available on demand for Fèis organisers to 
ensure they have the skills to run their events as 
professionally as possible. 

 No Fèis organiser training has been available to the end of Q1.    

CS27 Regular training for the staff of Fèisean nan Gàidheal and 
individual Fèisean. 

 There have been 4 training sessions involving 4 members of staff.  
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CS28 Assistance with creative writing through drama work and 
bespoke courses. 

 Creative writing will form part of Sgoil Shamhraidh Dràma activities, to take place 
in July.   
Our Drama Officer, Angus Macleod, put his own writing skills to good use in a 
series of drama activity videos which have been made available free online 
through FèisTV. 

 

CS29 Participation in cooperative working to offer further 
progression to individual young people. 

 This summer, Fèisean nan Gàidheal will be collaborating with local Fèisean, at the 
time they would normally be happening, to ensure there is an online Fèis available 
during the summer school holiday period. 
In addition, Fèis Phàislig and Fèis Arainn will be organising their own online 
Fèisean with financial assistance from Fèisean nan Gàidheal. 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal collaborated closely with Bòrd na Gàidhlig and Comunn na 
Gàidhlig on the #cleachiaigantaigh initiative during Q1. 
Finlay MacLennan is continuing his YoungScot placement to get a flavour of what 
is involved in working in Fèisean nan Gàidheal. 
Luke MacLeod is also undertaking a summer placement, involved in a range of our 
activities. 

 

Scotland is a distinctive creative nation connected to the world  
CS30 Assistance with the implementation by the Fèisean of our 

Gaelic Language Policy. 
 The implementation of our Gaelic Policy is a condition of grant funding. 

We offer help to Fèisean with translations, training and bilingual publicity materials 
on demand and monitor their use of Gaelic in publicity materials etc. 

 

CS31 Support for summer Fèis Cèilidh Trails.  Our annual Cèilidh Trails will not go ahead due to Covid-19. 
However, the young people who would have been involved will benefit from the 
training offered through the online Fèis Alba.  See CS20 above. 

 

CS32 Organisation and development of the annual Blas Festival 
including a new commission and expansion into new areas. 

 See CS21 above.  

CS33 Promoting Fèis participation in national events and themed 
years. 

 We are undertaking a year-long Gaelic song project for the 2020 Year of Coasts and 
Waters involving Gaelic singers from the Fèisean as well as some more established 
singers. The project is funded by the Scottish Government and Jo MacDonald 
continues to deliver the text for the songs and relevant background information.  
New recordings of all the songs are being commissioned and 26 were posted to 
the end of Q1. 

 

CS34 Participating in showcasing opportunities in Scotland and 
abroad as and when opportunities arise or can be created 

 Due to Covid-19 restrictions, there have been no showcase opportunities to the 
end of Q1. 

 

CS35 Ensuring our work is available to a wide audience through 
various media. 

 With the Covid-19 outbreak we had to move as much as possible of our 
programme to online delivery.  Because we have been working with digital media 
for some time, this was not as challenging as it might have been and the majority 
of the online events we have been offered have been extremely successful. 
We made our ‘Oide’ online music tuition site free to access during the Covid-19 
lockdown. 
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The #cleachiaigantaigh initiative has enabled us to support more work through the 
medium of Gaelic and, since the sessions were all online, to reach a wider audience, 
including people from abroad. 

Creative Scotland Connecting Themes  
Creative Learning: We want to be a learning organisation and encourage others to do the same. Learning is fundamental to ensuring that future generations are 
equipped to build on today’s successes as well as innovate on their own terms. 
CS36 Regular training in teaching skills for tutors allowing them to 

progress through various levels and, where possible, gain 
accreditation. 

 12 online CPD sessions were held for primary teachers to assist with Gaelic 
teaching. 

 

CS37 Regular Gaelic language training for Fèis tutors to ensure an 
increase in Gaelic use in line with the implementation of our 
Gaelic policy. 

 No progress in Q1.  

CS38 Initiatives to include more young people in decision-making.  Two youth representatives have been recruited to Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s Board 
and have attended their first two meetings. 
As noted in CS29 above, two young people are involved in the running of various 
activities as part of their placements. 

 

CS39 Utilise the talents of young people in developing and running 
events in particular, but not exclusively, during the 2018 Year 
of Young People and thereafter. 

 See CS38.  

CS40 Provision of digitisation, collecting and transcribing skills for 
young people. 

 A record 18 young singers have enrolled for Fuaran 2020 and a number of online 
training workshops have been organised for them.  Much of the research they will 
be required to do can also be conducted online, or at a distance, so this particular 
project has not been disrupted too much at the moment. 

 

CS41 Provision of performance skills training for young people.  All Fèis participants and young people who participate in our drama work gain 
performance skills. 
Performance skills training will be included in the activities for Fèis Alba in July. 

 

CS42 Provision of music business skills training for young people.  Elements of this will be built into Fèis Alba in July.  
CS43 Promotion of Fèisgoil as a coherent service offering creative 

learning opportunities across a number of art forms. 
 To the end of Q1, Fèisgoil delivered a range of activities as part of the 

#cleachiaigantaigh initiative, including Early years Gaelic medium activities, Gaelic 
drama workshops, Blasad Gàidhlig Gaelic language lessons for learners and 
children in GME, Beairteas sessions to enrich the language used by young people, a 
weekly online café with guests to inspire teenagers to use their Gaelic and 
Caraidean Còmhraidh (blether buddy) sessions for small groups of young people 
to use their language skills. 

 

CS44 Traditional Music classes in schools though the Youth Music 
Initiative (YMI) and other programmes such as Mòd 
Academies. 

 It is expected that traditional music tuition in all Highland Council primary schools 
will continue from August 2020 with the renewal of our agreement with High Life 
Highland.  
Work had just begun on the 2020 Mòd Academy when the Coronavirus lockdown 
caused school closures and this work is now on hold with the 2020 National Mòd 
rescheduled for Inverness in 2021. 
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CS45 Deliver Blasad Gàidhlig - programmes for schools requiring an 
introduction to Gaelic language and public bodies requiring 
Gaelic awareness training. 

 See CS43 for Blasad Gàidhlig. 
The future of this work is uncertain due to due expected pressures on local 
authority budgets following the Covid-19 crisis. 

 

CS46 Establishment of Beairteas – a scheme to match Gaelic 
speakers with schools and community groups to enrich 
language and cultural experiences. 

 See CS43 above.  

CS47 Residential opportunities for community activities delivered 
in Gaelic. 

 See CS22 above.   

CS48 CPD in Gaelic arts and culture for school teachers.  See CS36 and CS37 above.  
Equalities and Diversity: We aim to put equalities and diversity at the heart of all our activity enabling people from different backgrounds, from diverse communities and 
of all ages to access increased opportunity through access to arts and culture 
CS49 Further development of Gaelic medium Fèisean.  The majority of Fèisean now offer at least some of their activities through the 

medium of Gaelic and some are entirely in Gaelic. 
It is hoped the new Fèis na Linne will be developed further once face-to-face 
activities are permitted again. 
One positive outcome of the Covid-19 lockdown and the move to online delivery is 
that we have been able to organise and offer a lot more Gaelic medium music 
tuition than might normally have been the case. 

 

CS50 Development of a new Equalities, Diversity and Inclusion Plan 
for 2018-21 building on experience from implementing the 
2015-18 plan. 

 We continue to deliver our 2018-21 Equalities, Diversity and Inclusion Plan.  We will 
offer an annual progress report to the Board at their September meeting.  
Online delivery due to Covid-19 has enabled us to reach people we have not 
reached previously and this has been a positive aspect in terms of inclusion and 
equality.  

 

Environment: Climate change is one of the most significant challenges that faces us today. We want to ensure that we work in as sustainable a manner as possible and 
that the arts, screen and creative industries in Scotland do the same 
CS51 Continue to record carbon emissions.  Staff and Board members routinely record carbon emissions as do tutors employed 

directly by Fèisean nan Gàidheal.  Due to Covid-19 it is expected that our carbon 
emissions during Q1 will have reduced with no staff travel and home working 
having been the norm.   

 

CS52 Develop a Carbon Management Plan for 2018-21.  The actions for 2019-20 in our Carbon Management Plan were delivered in full and 
we expect to progress the 2020-21 actions in full also. 
We will offer an annual progress report to the Board at their December meeting.  

 

Digital: Digital technology offers exciting opportunities for creativity, society and the economy in Scotland  
CS53 Dissemination of news through our website, to media 

contacts and through regular, digital newsletters. 
 The majority of our communication was carried out digitally previously and this 

has certainly been the case during Q1.  Newsletters are distributed electronically 
and we use our website, social media and Mailchimp to promote events and other 
initiatives digitally. 

 

CS54 Production of new Gaelic and traditional music resources.  See CS35 for ‘Oide’. 
A range of new resources had to be developed and made available at very short 
notice during Q1 and music, drama and early years resources are available on the 
FèisTV YouTube channel. 
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CS55 Digitisation of existing teaching and other resources to 
ensure greater access to them. 

 Ceòl nam Fèis 1 and 2 are ready to publish as content-rich e-books and we just 
await their approval by the online e-book seller sites. 

 

CS56 The collection and digitisation of traditional Gaelic songs.  See CS40 above for Fuaran. 
Fèis Alba participants will have sessions on researching and using Gaelic songs and 
tunes from their locality. 
Our 2020 Year of Coasts and Water project continues to augment our online 
collection creating an excellent Gaelic resource. 

 

CS57 Launch downloadable app that will promote events and be a 
Gaelic learning tool. 

 This is now available here (Apple App Store) and here (Android).  

CS58 Ensuring our work is available to a wide audience through 
various media, in particular FèisTV. 

 See CS35.   

Quantitative Information  
Jobs created/retained FTE 
(84.5/21) 

17.0 Inward investment/public 
sector leverage to HIE area 
(£4.4m) 

£300,537 Increase in turnover (£360k) £50,000 Number of volunteers (640) 42 

Grants to Fèisean £69,927 Other Grants £0 Participants/Learners in Fèis 
Activities 

2,448 Audience at Fèis concerts & other 
events (online audiences) 

19,239 

Cultural events staged 
(1,441) 

193 Accredited skills 
development programmes 
delivered (264) 

16 Improved conditions for 
sectoral growth (1) 

0 Products/processes 
developed (4) 

1 

New/Improved 
services/amenities (3) 

1 Industry wide business 
collaboration projects 
completed (1) 

0 Community infrastructure 
projects completed (2) 

0 Community groups/individual 
Fèisean located in HIE with 
increased capacity (40) 

0 

Projects supporting the 
Gaelic economy (1) 

1 Sector policy outcomes 
delivered (5) 

0 Academic infrastructure 
projects completed (1) 

0 International Work 3 

HIE Deliverables 
Enhancement of Gaelic arts and culture in creative learning/Fèisgoil service 
HIE1 Continued promotion of Fèisgoil as a coherent service 

offering creative learning opportunities across a number of 
art forms. 

 See CS43 and CS44 above.  

HIE2 Tours in Gaelic of historical and heritage sites across Scotland.  No activity in Q1.  
HIE3 Supporting active participation for early years groups through 

Hùb Hàb. 
 See CS14 above.  

HIE4 Gaelic song and Gaelic related drama in schools where Gaelic 
is not taught to ensure children gain knowledge of Gaelic 
language and culture. 

 See CS15 and CS44 above.  

HIE5 Provide residential opportunities for community activities 
delivered in Gaelic. 

 See CS22 above.  

HIE6 Professional learning opportunities in Gaelic arts and culture 
within mainstream education. 

 See CS42 above.  
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HIE7 Gaelic translation and proof reading for the Fèisean.  Assistance with straightforward Gaelic translations and proofing is offered to 
Fèisean on a regular basis in pursuit of delivery of our Gaelic Language Policy.   

 

HIE8 Deliver traditional Music in schools though the Youth Music 
Initiative (YMI) and other programmes such as Mòd 
Academies. 

 See CS44 above.  

HIE9 Establishment of Beairteas – a scheme to match Gaelic 
speakers with schools and community groups to enrich 
language and cultural experiences. 

 See CS46 above.  

HIE10 Establish Blasad Gàidhlig - programmes for schools requiring 
an introduction to Gaelic language and public bodies 
requiring Gaelic awareness training. 

 See CS43 above.  

HIE11 Establish a new initiative supporting Gaelic drama workshops 
and performance programmes for Gaelic learners. 

 The ‘Sporan’ initiative was established in 2019-20 and, once permissible, we hope 
to build on it in 2020-21. 

 

Support and development of Fèisean 
HIE12 Provide funding for Fèis activities through a Fèisean Grants 

Scheme. 
 See CS7 above.  

HIE13 Continuation of strategic and practical support through a 
network of Development Officers each with a portfolio of 
Fèisean. 

 See CS23 above.  

HIE14 Capacity building support to community groups to establish 
new and develop existing Fèisean. 

 See CS2 and CS19 above.  

HIE15 Further development of Gaelic medium Fèisean.  See CS49 above.  
HIE16 Lending of musical instruments for free use at Fèisean 

through our Musical Instrument Bank. 
 See CS8 above.  

HIE17 Initiatives to include more young people in decision-making 
within the Fèisean. 

 See CS38 above.  

HIE18 Digitisation of existing teaching and other resources to 
ensure greater access to them. 

 See CS54 above.  

HIE19 Support for new and experimental work in the Gaelic arts, in 
particular develop disciplines under-represented in the 
Fèisean, and collection and digitisation of traditional creative 
art works. 

 See CS3 and CS56 above.  

HIE20 Provision of specialist assistance to ensure access for those 
with additional support needs. 

 See CS10 above.  

Enhancement of skills and creative talent / youth employment 
HIE21 Regular training in teaching skills for tutors allowing them to 

progress through various levels and, where possible, gain 
accreditation. 

 See CS29 above.  

HIE22 Regular training for staff, volunteers and individual Fèisean in 
the areas of fund-raising, governance, ICT, child protection, 
Gaelic language and first aid. 

 See CS26 above.  
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HIE23 Provision of performance skills training for young people  See CS41 above.  
HIE24 Support recognition for young Fèis participants through 

schemes such as the Duke of Edinburgh Awards, Arts Awards 
and Saltire Awards. 

 See CS29 above.  

HIE25 Provision of business skills training for young people.  See CS42 above.  
HIE26 Commercial opportunities for artists to capitalise on creative 

skills base through new commissions. 
 See CS5 above.  

HIE27 Provide skills development initiatives that will lead to 
employment for young people in the arts and creativity. 

 See CS36 above.  

HIE28 Provision of digitisation, collecting and transcribing skills for 
young people. 

 See CS40 above.  

HIE29 Engage young people in developing and running events in 
particular, but not exclusively, during the 2018 Year of Young 
People and thereafter. 

 See CS39 above.  

HIE30 Address creative disciplines and skills under-represented in 
the Fèisean through specialist sector events, engaging with 
creative experts to share skills and best practice. 

 See CS37 above.   

Audience development and engagement/cultural tourism 
HIE31 Continuation of support for summer Fèis Ceilidh Trails.  See CS31 above.    
HIE32 Organisation of and development of the annual Blas Festival.  See CS21 above.  
HIE33 Launch downloadable app that will promote events and be a 

Gaelic learning tool. 
 See CS57 above.  

HIE34 Use digital technologies to grow customer base, such as 
creating new digital ticketing service. 

 We use an online ticketing system for Blas which allows us to engage with 
customers thereafter to gather feedback.  
We utilise online grant forms and claim forms for our own Grants Scheme as well as 
Tasgadh. 
From April 2020, we were to engage with AudienceFinder but this has been 
delayed due to Covid-19. 
We have been using Eventbrite to manage online booking for events organised 
during lockdown. 

 

HIE35 Support regional and international residential opportunities 
for young people to engage in creative learning programmes. 

 See CS22 above.  
Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s CEO took part in an online congress with the Europe-wide 
arts organisation Amateo in June. 

 

HIE36 Deliver annual Gaelic Drama Summer School.  See CS6 above.  
HIE37 Residential opportunities for Gaelic arts and community 

activities delivered in Gaelic. 
 See CS22 above.  

HIE38 Promoting Fèis participation in national events and themed 
years with a special series of events for the 2018 Year of 
Young People. 

 See CS33 above.  

HIE39 Participate in showcasing opportunities in Scotland and 
abroad. 

 See CS34 above.  
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HIE40 Develop FèisTV, and grow strategic collaboration with BBC 
and BBC Alba to support new creative content for screen and 
broadcast sector. 

 See CS35 and CS58 above regarding FèisTV.   
There have been further discussions with MG ALBA regarding collaboration with, 
and support for, FèisTV with a possible project connected with Blas in November 
2020. 

 

HIE41 Continued operation of Tasgadh - traditional small grants 
programme. 

 See CS17 above. 
We have been asked by Creative Scotland to operate another grants programme 
on its behalf – Maoin nan Ealan Gàidhlig. 
 
 

 

Bòrd na Gàidhlig Deliverables 
BnG1.1 Support at least 44 Fèisean across Scotland, with grants, 

training, insurance, musical instruments and Gaelic skills 
training. 

 See CS1, CS2, CS7, CS8, CS9, CS10, CS11, CS18 and CS19 above.  

BnG1.2 Deliver at least 500 Blasad Gàidhlig sessions for pupils in 
schools where Gaelic Learner Education is available. 

 See CS43 above. 
Despite lockdown, 27 online sessions were delivered during Q1 to 271 pupils. 

 

BnG1.3 Deliver at least 4 Gaelic training sessions for tutors and staff.  The Fèisean nan Gàidheal team are working through an online Gaelic grammar 
course with Lews Castle College. 

 

BnG1.4 Attract at least 15 participants to 5 Latha.  See CS47 above. 
Financial resources earmarked for 5 Latha and the Sgoil Shamhraidh Dràma were 
applied towards the #cleachiaigantaigh programme which delivered a range of 
online activities (see CS43 above for further details) to 2,148 pupils in Q1. 

 

BnG1.5 50 preparatory sessions for pupils in GME to take part in local 
mòds or the Royal National Mòd.  

 See CS44 above.    

BnG1.6 20 sessions for early years groups.  See CS14 above.  
BnG1.7 6-week drama performance tour of GM schools and a 2-week 

tour of schools where Gaelic is taught as a second language.  
 See CS12 and HIE11 above.  

BnG2.1 30 school sessions as part of the Blas Festival.   See CS21 above.  
BnG2.2 30 concerts in the Blas Festival.  See CS21 above. 

If festival proceeds online, it is unlikely our target of 30 concerts will be achieved. 
 

BnG2.3 Offer a new commission to a musician with 4 performances.  We expect to offer a new commission for the Blas Festival in November.  
BnG3.1 Deliver at least 80 Gaelic drama sessions in schools.  There have been no drama sessions in schools but video-based Gaelic drama 

sessions have been made available online. 
 

BnG3.2 Attract at least 15 participants to the Sgoil Shamhraidh 
Dràma. 

 See CS6 above.  

BnG3.3 Develop a Gaelic pantomime with a tour round 3 Gaelic 
medium schools. 

 To be arranged depending on Covid-19 restrictions.  

BnG4.1 Stream 6 live events on Fèis TV.  See CS35 above.  
BnG4.2 Development of digital resources with evidence of at least a 

5% increase in users from the previous year.  
 See CS55 above.  
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BnG5 Implementation of the organisation’s Gaelic Policy, with 
confirmation of Gaelic as the daily working language of the 
organisation. 

 This is ongoing, daily work.  Fèisean nan Gàidheal operates through the medium of 
Gaelic and that is apparent through, for example, the papers prepared for board 
meetings and in our social media activity and print materials. 

 

BnG6.1 6-monthly report on how the Bòrd na Gàidhlig funding has 
been spent. 

 A report on the first six months will be available to Bòrd na Gàidhlig in October.  
 

 

BnG6.2 6-monthly report on the up-to-date financial situation of 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal.  

 This will be available to Bòrd na Gàidhlig in October but management accounts for 
the past 3 months are included as part of this report. 

 

BnG7 6-monthly report on the risks affecting the organisation, with 
details of mitigating actions. 

 This will be available to Bòrd na Gàidhlig in October.  We offer an annual report on 
risk management to our Board although our risk register has been updated in light 
of Covid-19. 

 

BnG8.1 Acknowledging the support of Bòrd na Gàidhlig in all 
projects, with evidence every 6 months. 

 Evidence will be available to Bòrd na Gàidhlig separately, but the Bòrd’s support is 
acknowledged in all our printed materials and in social media activity.  

 

BnG8.2 Evidence of regular discussions with the Bòrd’s Advisor on 
Arts and Culture. 

 Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s CEO communicates from time to time with the Bòrd’s 
Advisor on Arts and Culture but there has been no formal meeting this year to 
date. 
Several meetings took place between Fèisean nan Gàidheal and Bòrd na Gàidhlig 
to develop the #cleachiaigantaigh initiative. 

 

BnG8.3 Evidence of contact with Comunn na Gàidhlig lomairtean 
officers. 

 Discussions took place with Comunn na Gàidhlig officers around the 
#cleachiaigantaigh online programme to try and minimise duplication of work. 

 

BnG8.4 Publish at least six press releases to publicise the 
organisation’s work and to acknowledge the support of the 
Bòrd. 

 A number of press releases have been published acknowledging Bòrd na Gàidhlig’s 
support. 

 

BnG8.5 Press releases be submitted to the Bòrd’s communications 
team to give the Bòrd an opportunity to add 
quotes/information. 

 This has happened on number of occasions during Q1, particularly in connection 
with the #cleachiaigantaigh initiative. 

 

BnG8.6 Information on any changes to membership of the 
organisation’s board or staff. 

 There have been no further changes in the board make-up and the current 
membership is available at feisean.org/en/feisean-nan-gaidheal-board/. 

 

BnG8.7 Minutes of board meetings to be submitted to Bòrd na 
Gàidhlig once prepared.  

 Bòrd na Gàidhlig is sent copies of all board papers regularly which include the 
minutes from meetings. 

 

BnG8.8 Copies of the organisation’s annual report and annual 
accounts to be submitted to Bòrd na Gàidhlig once published. 

 The annual report and accounts will be published in September.  

BnG8.9 Regular updates to the organisation’s website and social 
media with information on its work. 

 This happens daily.  

BnG9.1 Using Gaelic 
• More opportunities for people to use their Gaelic skills 
• More people agree with the phrase, “Gaelic makes a 

difference to my life." 

 Opportunities are created through our programme of work.  There is work still to 
be done in gathering evidence through our evaluation processes. 

 

BnG9.2 Learning Gaelic 
• More children taking part in early years sessions 
• More opportunities for people to improve their Gaelic 

 This work has been taking place through our programme and further information 
will be sent to Bòrd na Gàidhlig separately.  
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• More people agree with the phrase, "I have improved my 
Gaelic skills." 

BnG9.3 Promoting Gaelic 
• Ensuring that Gaelic is recognized as part of Scotland’s 

national identity, an open national, multi-cultural 
identity. 

• More people agree with the phrase, "Gaelic is important 
to Scotland." 

 Everything in which Fèisean nan Gàidheal is involved promotes Gaelic.  Evidence 
will be sent to Bòrd na Gàidhlig separately. 

 

BnG10 Promote the following themed years and the place of Gaelic 
in them as part of our promotion: 
• 2019: UNESCO Year of Minority Languages 
• 2020: The Year of Scottish Coasts and Waters 
• 2021: The Year of Columba 
• 2022: The Year of Scotland’s Stories 

 See CS33 above for information about 2020 Year of Coasts and Waters. 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s CEO took part in an online session to find out more about 
plans for the 2021 Year of Columba. 

 

Highland Council Deliverables 
HC1 Service Level Agreement still to be received at end of Q1.  Unable to report on progress in the absence of a Service Level Agreement.   

Despite attempts to get an answer, there has been no communication from The 
Highland Council as to whether we will receive a SLA in 2020-21. 

 

Argyll & Bute Council Deliverables 
ABC1 Contribution to grants awarded to the Argyll & Bute Fèisean 

through Feisean nan Gàidheal’s Grants Scheme. 
 Argyll & Bute Council has offered £18,450 to support activities in 2020-21. 

Argyll Fèisean have received £20,615 towards 2020-21 activities to the end of Q1.  It 
is expected further payments will be made to them once activities begin again. 
Three Argyll Fèisean benefitted from additional payments made to Fèisean to cope 
with the cancellation of work caused by the Covid-19 lockdown. 

 

ABC2 Contribution towards Feisean nan Gàidheal’s programme of 
work in Argyll & Bute 

 Two Development Officers support Argyll Fèisean - the equivalent of a 0.6 FTE post. 
All other staff support Argyll Fèisean with a range of services. 
Schools in Argyll & Bute will benefit from drama workshops, early years work 
through Hùb Hàb, a Meanbh-Chuileag tour and the Gaelic Panto tour should those 
go ahead, once Covid-19 restrictions are relaxed.   
Meanwhile, during Q1, some Argyll children took part in the #cleachiaigantaigh 
programme. 

 

 
 
Action Required 
Board members are asked to note the progress with our programme of work and discuss any issues arising from the report. 
 
 

Arthur Cormack 
Chief Executive 

September 2020 
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Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
Summer programme and the months ahead 
Agenda item: 3.2020.02(b) 
 
 
Reason for the Paper 
To inform Board members of outcomes from Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s summer programme and proposals for the 
months ahead. 
 
 
Background 
As reported at the previous meeting of the Board, the Covid-19 pandemic initially caused a fair amount of 
disruption to the delivery of Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s programme. 
 
Our priority was to support the local Fèisean and we have continued to do that as many of them offer online 
lessons.  We have been releasing grants at the point of need and continue to support them in the usual variety of 
ways. 
 
We had to significantly rethink how to deliver our programme but, so far, we have managed to offer a fairly wide 
range of events which, while delivered in a different manner, have been broadly welcomed. 
 
 
Summer events  
The Bòrd na Gàidhlig led #cleachdi aig an taigh programme engaged over 4,000 participants in a variety of 
sessions including: 
• Early years Gaelic medium activities 
• Gaelic drama workshops 
• Gaelic language lessons for learners and children in GME 
• Beairteas sessions to enrich the language used by young people 
• Sessions on gnàthasan-cainnt to enrich young people’s vocabulary 
• A weekly online café with guests who could inspire teenagers to use their Gaelic 
• Gaelic singing sessions for all ages 
• A programme of Gaelic medium musical instrument lessons 
• A series of talks related to Gaelic culture 
• Caraidean Còmhraidh sessions with small groups ensuring young people used Gaelic. 
 
Our Oide online teaching resource was offered free of charge and we re-released Ceòl nam Fèis as an e-book. 
 
Both the Sgoil Shamhraidh Dràma (Gaelic drama summer school) and Fèis Alba (training for Cèilidh Trail 
participants) proceeded online, with performances at the end of each.  Fuaran continued and we were able to add 
weekly to our Year of Coasts and Waters Gaelic song archive.  To the end of June our online videos had been 
viewed by over 19,000 people. 
 
During the school summer holidays, all local Fèisean which wished to collaborate with us had the opportunity to 
do so in order to ensure there was one online Fèis each week.  We did not compete with Fèis Phàislig as a very 
good online programme had been organised by them.  Fèis Arainn had done likewise although Fèis an Rubha 
engaged in some Gaelic medium activities during the same week. 
 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal covered the costs of all those activities and the logos of the appropriate local Fèisean were 
used in all publicity materials and online videos as an acknowledgement of the collaboration between us. 
 
All summer activities were offered free of charge but we did invite donations.  After JustGiving deducted their 
costs, the amount we received was around £2,400. 
 
 
Proposals for the coming months 
Various members of the team will offer verbal updates to the Board on the proposed programme for the coming 
months to include: 
• #cleachdi aig an taigh series 2 
• Fèisgoil (including drama work) 
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• October Fèisean 
• Bothan nan Òran 
• Blas Festival 
• Fuaran 
• Year of Coasts and Waters. 
 
Most activities during lockdown were free.  Some activities will continue to be offered free but feedback from 
parents suggested they would be content to pay for lessons, so we have begun charging for them. 
 
 
Action required 
Board members are invited to note the outcomes of the summer programme and approve the forthcoming 
programme following the information presented verbally at the Board meeting. 
 
 

 Arthur Cormack 
Chief Executive 

September 2020 
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Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
Staff Progress Reports 
Agenda Item: 3.2020.02(c) 
 

 
Name Arthur Cormack 
Position Chief Executive 

 
Engagement activity since the previous Board meeting 
03.06.20 Brìgh with Margaret Stewart 
05.06.20 Phone meeting with Anna Murray 
10.06.20 Brìgh with Margaret Stewart 
15.06.20 MEPG webinar regrading online teaching 
17.06.20 Creative Scotland webinar on Crowdfunder 
17.06.20 Brìgh with Margaret Stewart  
23.06.20 Meeting with High Life Highland regarding ‘Spirit of the Highlands’ commissioning 
26.06.20 Phone meeting with Douglas Cowan, HIE 
26.06.20 Video meeting with Bòrd na Gàidhlig to discuss #cleachdi aig an taigh 
29.06.20 Video meeting with Lio Moscardini who was researching music tuition during lockdown 
29.06.20 Monthly meeting with Bòrd na Gàidhlig 
30.06.20 Meeting with Ionad Thròndairnis (Iomairtean) 
01.07.20 Brìgh with Margaret Stewart 
02.07.20 Video meeting with Mary Ann Kennedy regarding Gaelic song-writing course 
06.07.20 Discussion with MG Alba regarding Blas 
08.07.20 Brìgh with Margaret Stewart 
09.07.20 Phone meeting with Siobhan Anderson, Creative Scotland 
13.07.20 Meeting of Creative Scotland’s Traditional Arts Working Group  
15.07.20 Brìgh with Margaret Stewart 
20.07.20 Participation in Lews Castle College discussion on Soillse research 
21.07.20 Participation in Bòrd na Gàidhlig education meeting 
23.07.20 Meeting with Mairi Buchanan, HIE 
30.07.20 Meeting with Mairi Kidd, Creative Scotland, regarding Maoin nan Ealan Gàidhlig 
30.07.20 Meeting with Fèis representatives to discuss Soillse research 
19.08.20 Phone meeting with Siobhan Anderson, Creative Scotland 
24.08.20 Monthly meeting with Bòrd na Gàidhlig 
26.08.20 Meeting with FC Sonas 
27.08.20 Meeting to discuss new Gaelic song commissions 
08.09.20 Meeting with Cllr Calum Munro, Chair, Highland Council Gaelic Committee 
09.09.20 Meeting with Mairead Morgan and William Mohieddeen of Highland & Islands Students’ 

Association 17.09.20 Meeting with Katie Lackie, The Highland Council 
23.09.20 Meeting with Alastair Nicolson, Area Manager of HIE 

   
In addition to the above which have been, for the most part, with external individuals/bodies and 
artists involved in delivering our programme, there have been numerous video calls with groups and 
individuals from within Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s team.  I would reiterate my own thanks to the whole 
team who have been working extremely well in challenging circumstances over the past few 
months. 
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Name Anne Willoughby 
Job Title Executive Manager 
 
Support and development of Fèisean 
These are the tasks that were covered up to now working from home.  
• I processed payment letters and paid out Main Feis, Classes & Annualised Hours payments 

through Fèisean nan Gàidheal Grants Scheme 2019-20. Applications for 20/21 were received and 
payments were made to Easter & Summer Fèisean to allow them to pay tutors already booked. 
The next round of offer letters will go out this week. 

• I paid out Fèis Development Scheme payments to the end of the year but activities restricted 
now. 

• All Fèisean must supply me with Claim Form 1’s which have a tutor list, before grant is released. 
I process this and it is cross-referenced by our Child Protection Officer to ensure they have a 
current PVG. If not the relevant form is sent to the Tutor.  Grants to Fèisean are not issued until 
all tutor PVGs are in place.  

• Funding was paid out to Fèis Tìr an Eòrna, Fèis na h-Òige, Fèis Bharraigh & Fèis Chataibh for carers 
and/or additional tutors to ensure access for young people with individual support needs last 
year.  

• I am organising the Annual Conference 2020 on 25 September 2020, online. Invitations were sent 
out after the programme was in place, I compiled a Guest List & Luke sent out invites. I will send 
out expenses forms after the event and ensured all musicians/contributors are paid.  

• I sent out book orders to Fèisean and suppliers to end of year. Ceòl nam Fèis 1 is now available 
in digital form. 

• I processed all payments relating to Fèis Alba. I issued payments to Cèilidh trails. 
• There was less demand on the instrument bank this year. Luke is looking after this now.  
• Insurance is provided for all Fèisean as part of their membership package and was been revised 

and renewed in February 2020. Events insurance cover will be organised for Blas Festival.  
• I will send out membership invoices to all Fèisean after the AGM. 
• I support all Fèisean on a day to day basis with different queries and needs. 
 
Enhancement of skills & creative talent 
• Training is made available to Fèis Organisers as and when required. 15 will take  part in Child 

Protection training on 29/30 September 2020.  Individual Child Protection training is available 
online.  

• All staff are encouraged to complete an ACAS Equality & Diversity online training course. Luke 
Slater has been doing online website training with staff working from home. Karen took part in 
2 courses in July - Introduction to Oral History  and in August – Kindling Enterprise within the 
Community. All staff in Inverness took part in a workshop on using Zoom run by Jed Milroy. Abi 
& Karen took part in Creating Safety, a Creative Scotland workshop. Luke took part in 
conversation sessions run by Fèis Rois.  

• I organised 2 sessions with Alec MacDonald on Idioms as part of Cleachdiaigantaigh. 
• We ensure through Gaelic Development Plans and Grant funding restrictions that Feisean 

adhere to our Gàidhlig policy.  
• The annual drama summer school took place online this year, 06-10 July2020 
• Luke will now assist with the additional grant schemes, Tasgadh & MEG. 
 
Enhancement of Gaelic arts & culture in creative learning 
All invoices have been paid. I process all payments relating to Coig Latha, Cleachdiaigantaigh, Guth 
nan Gael activities, Fuaran, Drama Summer School, Hùb-Hab, Meanbh Chuileag tour, Meanbh-
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fhèis, Blàsad Gàidhlig sessions, Mòd Academy, Fèisgoil, Panto, Gaelic Awareness training, Feis TV, 
YMIS payments & Blas Festival normally. 
 
Audience development and engagement 
• Blas Festival will take place in November 2020.  I give financial support to Blas Festival Ltd, 

payment processing, budget monitoring, preparation of Vat returns and HMRC quarterly 
returns.  

• In 2020-21 there are 6 Ceilidh Trails, I have processed grant offer letters and payments for co-
ordinators. Cèilidh Trails for 2020 were cancelled but we offered online training and events. 

 
Governance, finance and staffing 
• I am responsible for General day-to-day management of Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s Portree office.  

I manage the Administrator and the Child Protection Officer. We are all home-working due to 
the Covid-19 pandemic. 

• I am responsible for keeping accounting and payroll records on behalf of Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
and its associated activities and projects. I ensure Pension payments are recorded and 
processed. I ensure the OSCR Return and Companies House Return is submitted.  

• I produce all necessary financial reports and ensure claims for funding are submitted on time. 
Claims were sent to HIE at the end of the first quarter. The first claim has now been  paid out, all 
claims are up to date.  

• I am responsible for Management of all HR records, staff contracts and staff training records. I 
organised and attended Project Officer & Development Officer interviews. I sent out contracts 
to the successful applicants. Luke Slater started in the Administrator post in March 2020. Laura 
Nicolson is currently on Maternity Leave. 

• I ensure that all management account preparation is in place and management accounts, 
which form part of this report, are received in good time. I worked with Kaye MacLeod for the 
Annual accounts Audit this year, this was all done online. Management accounts for the last 
quarter have been prepared. 

• I normally organise the quarterly Board meetings but this is on Zoom now. Luke compiled the 
minutes for the May Board meeting with support.  I have produced all the financial reports for 
the upcoming Board meeting. 

• Staff have been meeting online as required. We are using Zoom & Skype.  
• We are required to report on carbon emissions for Creative Scotland and I have been 

nominated as a Green Champion. I have been recording carbon emissions since April 2015 for 
staff, board members and tutors. I will be updated our Carbon Management Plan this month.  

• The Risk Register has to be reviewed and updated annually, this has already been done this 
year in May 2020.  
 

We are constantly in touch by Skype but I attended the following face-to-face meetings by 
Skype or Zoom:  
Board Meeting – 22 May 2020 
Staff Meeting (Arthur, CA, Eilidh) – 28 May 2020  
Staff Meeting  (All Staff) – 26 June 2020  
Staff Meeting (Arthur) – 30 June 2020 
Staff Meeting (Arthur) – 21 July 2020 
Staff Meeting (CA) – 12 August 2020 
Staff Meeting (Arthur, CA, Eilidh) – 01 September 2020  
Staff Meeting (All Staff) – 07 September 2020  
Staff Meeting (Arthur, Luke) – 15 September 2020 
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Name Calum Alex Macmillan 
Job Title Development Manager 
 
Support and development of Fèisean 
Fèisean 
Over the past few months I have been working with Fèisean in the Western Isles and Skye to assist 
them with the classes and Fèisean they were due to hold. A lot of these tuition opportunities have 
moved to an online format and I am assisting further fèisean as they look to keep their 
programmes running. 
 
II offer support and guidance to the development on a daily basis and particularly at this time for 
the work they are doing with Fèisean and online events. 
 
Fèisean an t-Samhraidh 
We organised a programme of online Fèisean over 6 weeks of the summer holidays in partnership 
with 14 Fèisean that were due to take place at that time. In total 439 children took part in the 
classes and 29 tutors delivered the classes. 
 
Digital Developments 
The Ceòl nam Fèis books are now available in digital format. We will be looking at other existing 
resources we have that can be made available digitally as well as considering new ebooks. 
 
Year of Coasts and Water 
I have been continuing to organise singers for this project with a song appearing online each 
week. I was part of the panel that reviewed the commission submissions and I’m pleased that 
Rachel Walker was award the opportunity to compose a new song to celebrate Coasts and Waters 
of Scotland. I am delighted that we were able to offer further commissions for three new songs to 
Gaelic songwriters which will be released as part of the Blas festival.   
 
Enhancement of skills & creative talent 
Blas 2020 
We held a meeting of the programming group at the beginning of June and from then I have 
worked with the CEO to plan and programme the festival which will take place between 22-30 
November. 
 
We intend to hold the festival in an online format with one main concert each evening as well as a 
programme of classes, workshops, lectures and more. 
 
Staff Training 
We are still working through the Gaelic Grammar course through Lews Castle College. 
 
Staff members have been involved in photography, filming, archiving and community 
development workshops in recent months. We continue to look out for opportunities that would 
be beneficial for staff. 
 
Committee and Tutor Training 
I have organised child protection training for a number of committee members who will undertake 
online courses with NSPCC. 
 
In an August staff meeting we discuss training opportunities for committee members and Fèisean 
tutors and we will look to deliver a number of workshops for them over the winter. 

23



Fuaran 
I have been supporting a number of participants as they undertake their research as part of the 
Fuaran project as well as working closely with colleagues on the overall project. 
 
Enhancement of Gaelic arts & culture in creative learning 
Cleachdiaigantaigh 
As a team we have been very busy over the past few months offering a wide-ranging programme 
of classes, workshops and lecture for all ages with almost 3,000 people having taken part to date.  
 
We will be organising more online lessons over autumn/winter and we will hold an online fèis 
during the October holidays. 
 
I hosted the Tac an Teine Gaelic song session through Zoom 5 times between May and July and 
will continue to hold it from the beginning of October onwards. 
 
Audience development and engagement 
FèisTV 
We streamed pre-recorded tutor’s concerts each week from the summer Fèisean which have been 
viewed by over 14,000 people. We also streamed a concert featuring the participants who sent 
videos in to us and that has been viewed over 2,500 times. 
 
We will be streaming events from the AGM and Blas over the autumn. 
 
Oide has now been launched and we will be adding further lessons and instruments to it over the 
next few months. 
 
Governance, finance and staffing 
Staff 
We remain working from home at this time and all the staff are working well together and making 
use of technology to communicate regularly. 
 
Meetings 
26.6 –Bòrd na Gàidhlig regarding the #cleachdiaigantaigh initiative 
6.7 –MG Alba/Beezr about potential partnership working at Blas 
30.7 – With Fèisean in areas related to the newly released Soillse research. 
1.9 – James Graham (An Comunn) to discuss partnership working on various projects 
2.9 – A discussion DJ Mac an t-Saoir (OGE) about working together on a lecture at Blas 
4.9 – A discussion with Maolcholaim Scott to talk about potential online projects for groups in 
Ireland Scotland to come together. 
 
 

Ainm Eilidh Mackenzie 
Dreuchd Fèisgoil Manager 
 
Taic do agus ag adhartachadh nam Fèisean 
Strengthening links between Fèisean is Fèisgoil: 
• Under these strange circumstances I still feel the work of Fèisgoil is now more closely 

connected to the online work of the Fèisean themselves.  
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A’ leasachadh sgilean is thàlantan 
Raining events 
I attended the following: 
• 22.05.20 Session with PiPA (Parents in Performing Arts Campaign) 
• 11.06.20 Session on Zoom with Jed Milroy from Tinderbox Collective 
• 24.08.20 Another session on Zoom with Màiri Campbell (through Traditional Music Forum, 

TMF) 
• 11.09.20 Session with PiPA – Strengthening Foundations for an Inclusive Post-Covid Sector 
• 21.09.20-27.09.20 – Creative Bravery Festival (Education) 
 
I was given the opportunity to take part in some of the online song-based talks  ‘Brìgh le 
Maighread Stiùbhart’ 03.06.20 – 08.07.20 
 
Sessions that I have led 
• 01.06.20: Webinar MEPG on Safeguarding  
• 03.08.20:  NYCOS Summer School: a teaching and discussion session co-led with Fiona 

Hunter on Songs from Scotland 
 
A’ toirt ealain is cultar na Gàidhlig air adhart an lùib oideachadh cruthachail 
I was heavily  involved with the #cleachdiaigantaigh inititative from Bòrd na Gàidhlig  
organising many projects, among them Café Bheairteis (20.04.20-03.07.20 +21.08.20), Òrain Hùb 
Hàb Beò (07.05.20 – 26.06.20), Seisean Bheirteis na sgoile (21.05.20-28.05.20), Blasad Gàidhlig 
(FtMG) 26.05.20-09.06.20), and Caraidean Còmhraidh 24.06.20–01.07.20 & 14.07.20-05.08.20) 
 
DRÀMA 
Video support sessions (see Angus’ report)  
 
SSD20: 
Angus organised SSDAL2020 between 6 and 10July.  There were 6 participants and all online 
sessions were led by Lana Beaton with support from Angus.  
Meanbh Chuileag and Sporan: 
For the first time we will be delivering Meanbh Chuileag and Sporan as a film, offered to schools 
with a live online workshop as part of the event. We will have two TIE films – one in Gaelic for 
GME schools and one in English with Gaelic words and phrases for schools where Gaelic is 
taught as an additional language.   
 
I embarked on some research this year on the topic Black Lives Matter (BLM) and came across 
the story of Eliza Junor from Guyana and Fortrose. Angus wrote a new script for the project, a 
series of monologues with four characters involved. All four actors are under the age of 21and 
monologues have been/will be recorded in green screen studios throughout the country, close 
to the individual actors involved with remote direction from Angus. Also, for the first time, music 
will play a role in the overall production with newly commissioned music around two songs, one 
traditional and one newly written by me for the project. 
 
LANGUAGE 
Beairteas: specific sessions for secondary-age school pupils delivered by Murdo Beaton: Ann an  
Làrach-coise nan Gaisgeach and Sandra Murray: Seo mi, is mise an t-snàthad 
 
Café Bheairteis: Café Bheairteis, where Gaelic is used socially is appropriate for teenagers and 
young adults with Gaelic. It takes place every frdiay afternoon during school term. At the start of 
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the current term, we also began a breakout room for beginners/improvers of the same age.  
Here is a list of the special guests who have attended in the weeks since the last Board meeing:  
 

22.05.20 - Calum Maclean, film-maker, presenter, adventurer 
29.05.20 -  Sian, singers Ellen Macdonald, Eilidh Cormack and Ceitlin Lilidh 
05.06.20 -  Kerry MacPhee, cyclist 
12.06.20 -  Shona Masson, presenter and crafter 
19.06.20 -  Brìghde Rankin, singer and Gaelic activist from Cape Breton 
26.06.20 -  Derek MacinTosh, presenter and actor 
03.07.20 -  Ruairidh Graham, Niteworks 
21.08.20 -  first week back, no special guest – just an aopportunity for the young people to talk 
freely 
28.08.20 -  Ramsay MacMahon, presenter and adventurer 
04.09.20 -  Kate Forbes, MSP, Cabinet Minister for Finance 
11.09.20 -  Derek ‘Pluto’ Murray, presenter 
18.09.20 -  tbc 
25.09.20 – as this is our AGM there will be no Cafe 

•  
• Blasad Gàidhlig: GME (new during lockdown) 
• May – June : we ran sessions for children in GME led by three tutors, Kirsty MacDougall, Katie 

Mackenzie and Eilidh Cormack.  
•  

Blasad Gàidhlig: additional language; Falkirk 
The Basad Gàidhlig sessions in Falkirk schools resumed on 09.09.20, delivered online for the first 
time. 
  
Consortium of Local Authorities: CLPL 
I am awaiting confirmation of the proposed CLPL sessions for teachers working to deliver Gaelic 
as an additional language in primary schools, mainly through L1+2 across 14 Local Authorities 
working together. 
 
MUSIC 
Resources 
We are working on new song resources. We have collated the 430+ songs that already appear in 
various FnG projects in one place with hyperlinks to video, audio or lyric only existing formats. I 
am also working on a new YMI song resource which includes suggestions from Eilidh Cormack, 
Ellen Jack and myself.   
 
YMI 
At a meeting with Norman Bolton of HLH on 07.09.20 I learned that FnG would be receiving a cut 
to our YMI funding of £12K. We are preparing to deliver sessions online after the October 
holidays (with no singing, whistle or school instruments, following current guidelines.)  
 
Hùb Hàb Songs Live 
Ellen Macdonald delivered a day and a half of live song sessions for early years , every week over 
8 weeks in the run up to the summer break.  
 
NYCoS: Seinn as t-samhradh - Wee Summer Sing 
I set five songs from the 1964 publication, Aithris is Oideas, to melodies, each about birds and the 
songs they make and NYCOS used this as part of their online summer series, Wee Summer Sing,   
29.06.20-03.07.20. Lucinda Geoghegan of NYCOS has requested to use one of these as part of a 
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new resource for international music teaching (International Kodaly Society) based on mother 
tongue learning. 
 
A’ tarraing luchd-èisteachd is a’ meudachadh nan àireamhan aca 
As everything we currently deliver takes place online, audiences for Fèisgoil activity will 
inevitably change, but we would hope this would result in an increase in uptake of our activity 
on offer. 
 
Riaghladh, ionmhas agus luchd-obrach 
Meetings:   
• Morning meetings daily with the Inverness FnG team although, as a matter of time efficiency, 

this changed recently to just once a week. 
• FnG – the whole team – once or twice 
• FnG managers – 01.09.20 
• Aonghas – many times this quarter, particularly in relation to Meanbh Cuileag/Sporan TIE 
• Headteachers and class teachers  - several times 
• Gillian Campbell-Thow, consortium–once with Arthur 06.07.20 and on one other occasion 

05.08.20 
• Norman Bolton – HLH – 14.08.20 and 07.09.20 
• YMI area co-ordinators: 06.08.20 
• Meanbh Chuileag and Sporan  ctors – 4 times – 21.08.20, 01.09.20 (x2), 04.09.20 
• Meanbh Chuileag and Sporan musicians – 01.09.20 
• MEPG – 05.05.20; 01.09.20 
• MEPG recovery group – 17.08.20 
• Coinneach Morrison, Islands Recovery and Policy Manager, Scottish Government: 28.08.20 

• Morag Anna Macleod Mitchell, The Highland Council: 09.09.20 (conversation around Mod 
Academy and the Virtual Mòd) 

Recording Sessions 
• NYCOS Wee Summer Sing five songs recorded 01-03.07.20 
• NYCOS Summer School two songs recorded 28.07.20 
• Songs for ‘Eliza’ – demos of two songs 29-31.07.20 
• ‘Eliza’ Monologues – 10.09.20 Tawana Maramba at Dangerous Studios, Edinburgh, through 

zoom – Angus directing remotely with me in attendance online for production support.  
 
 

Name Angus Macleod 
Job Title Drama Officer 
 
Support and development of Fèisean 
Gaelic translation and proof-reading service for the Fèisean 
I provide simultaneous translation service at board meetings and support Fèisean with proof 
reading when required. 
 
Gaelic Drama at Fèisean Review 
A review of the provision of Gaelic medium drama at Fèisean and potential development 
opportunities is underway with support from development officers. 
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Enhancement of skills & creative talent 
Participation in initiatives that will lead to employment for young people in the arts and 
creativity. 
Employment and skills development opportunities are provided for Gaelic speaking actors 
through the Meanbh-chuileag Theatre-In-Education, Hùb Hàb Early Years Theatre and Gaelic 
Pantomime projects.  Opportunities for Gaelic-speaking drama tutors are provided through 
Drama Festivals for Gaelic Medium primary schools and Gaelic Drama Summer School. 
 
Gaelic Actors Database 
It is hoped to increase the number of Gaelic speakers in our database interested in acting in our 
drama projects.  This was promoted in early March before the lockdown. Information and a link 
to an online registration form is available at www.feisean.org/opportunities. 
 
Enhancement of Gaelic arts & culture in creative learning 
Hùb Hàb 2020 – Duanagan Aodaich (Clothing Ditties) 
Additional tours of the Duanagan Aodaich (Clothing Ditties) play for schools and nurseries in the 
Comhairle nan Eilean Siar and Highland Council regions were scheduled to take place in April 
and May but were cancelled because of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic.    
 
Cleachd i aig an taigh:  Online Resources 
To support Bòrd na Gàidhlig’s Cleachd i aig an taigh initiative I produced instructional videos at 
home which are aimed at primary school children in Gaelic medium education and their families.  
Sgilean Dràma features Gaelic drama warm ups and exercises and Àm-cluiche features fun 
activities which encourage Gaelic language use at home.  The videos are available to view on our 
YouTube channel. 
 
Sgoil-Shamhraidh Dràma Air Loidhne 2020 
This year’s Gaelic Drama Summer School which was scheduled to take place in Portree between 
Monday 6th and Friday 17th July 2020 was cancelled because of the Covid 19 situation.  An 
online alternative Sgoil-Shamhraidh Dhràma Air Loidhne 2020 was delivered between the 6th 
and 10th of July 2020 with artistic direction provided by Lana Pheutan.  The Sgoil had six 
participants.  More information about the online drama school and examples of the work 
produced can be viewed at  www.feisean.org/ssd.   
 
Meanbh-chuileag Online: 2020/2021  
A national tour with a Meanbh-chuileag play, originally scheduled to be held between the 24th 
of August and 9th October, was cancelled because of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic.  An 
online alternative is currently in production with plans to offer it to primary schools from the 
26th of  October onwards. 
 
Panto Gàidhlig Online 2020  
Although plans to produce and tour a Gaelic pantomime nationally were scheduled to take 
place between 23rd November and 11th December, the tour was cancelled because of the 
ongoing Covid-19 pandemic.  The production of online pantomime is scheduled to begin in 
September with a view to offer it to schools in December 2020. 
 
Audience development and engagement 
News of drama projects delivered through the Fèisgoil service is regularly promoted online via 
our website  and social media accounts.  Sgoil-Shamhraidh Dràma Air Loidhne 2020 was 
promoted on our website and Facebook. Press releases about projects are sent to media 
contacts at e.g. BBC Radio nan Gàidheal, BBC An Là and printed press.  
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Governance, finance and staffing 
Meetings: 
Inverness Office Team meetings – at least two times a week. (Zoom/ Skype) 
FnG Team meeting (Wordpress Training) = 09.09.20. (Skype) 
Sgoil Shamhraidh Dràma Air Loidhne 2020 = 10 x school sessions (60 minutes) between 6 and 
10th July 2020 (Zoom). 
Meanbh-chuileag Air Loidhne 2020:  Reading sessions, rehearsal sessions and recording sessions 
with actors (Zoom). 

 

 
 

Name Nicola Simpson 
Job Title Senior Development Officer 
 
Support and development of Fèisean 
Fèis Air an Oir 
• Having moved online during lockdown, classes will continue online over the winter thus 

avoiding issue of bad weather and the cost of heating the hall each week. Feedback from the 
online classes has been very positive. The AGM is due to take place in October. 

 
Fèis a’ Bhaile 
• The Fèis a’ Bhaile AGM took place on Tuesday 8th September and the committee welcomed 

several new members. 
• The Main Fèis due take place in October has been cancelled due to school lets not being 

available at present. 
• The Fèis hope to launch a new Facebook page and a tune-book for participants in the coming 

months. 
 
Fèis Inbhir Narainn  
• Weekly classes continue online although the committee are keen to explore options for getting 

back to face to face teaching as soon as possible.  
• The AGM took place, via zoom, on Wednesday 9th September. 
 
Fèis Obar Dheathain  
• The Main Fèis which was due to take place from 6 – 10th April has been cancelled and the Fèis 

will now take place in April 2021. 
 
Fèis Chataibh  
• The next scheduled event is the Main Fèis in July 2021 

 
Fèis Spè  
• Weekly classes continue online. 
• As it is not possible to run the usual main week, the committee are working towards an online 

Fèis which will take place from 12 – 16th October. 
• The Fèis was fortunate to receive local funding to assist with the cost of continuing online 

classes during lockdown.  
 
Fèis Ghallaibh 
• The next Fèis Ghallaibh workshop was scheduled to take place this month but it will be 

rescheduled when the venue becomes available to let.  
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Fèis Mhoireibh 
• AGM is due to take place in November 
• Weekly clarsach classes are on-going 
 
Enhancement of skills & creative talent 
Ceilidh Trails  
• Although Fèis Alba could not physically take place this year, we ran a successful online week of 

masterclasses for advanced musicians age 14 – 20. The week involved Gaelic classes, daily 
masterclass sessions, tutorials and a final night ceilidh, hosted by Fèis Latharna.  

 
Masterclass Weekend 
• I will be working on this event in the coming weeks, if it does not go ahead online in 

November, it will be rescheduled for November 2021 to coincide with Blas.  
 
Dance Project 
• The questionnaire distributed to Fèisean had a good response rate and I am working on plans 

to increase dance opportunities amongst the Fèisean 
 
Enhancement of Gaelic arts & culture in creative learning 
The planned Gaelic training for tutor and first aid training scheduled to take place in March had to 
be cancelled. We will aim to reschedule these sessions in 2021. 
 

 
Ainm Abi Lightbody 
Dreuchd Oifigear Leasachaidh 
 
Taic do agus ag adhartachadh nam Fèisean 
I have been supporting the Fèisean and working on new budgets for running their classes and 
Fèisean online. 
 
Fèis Dhùn Bhreatainn an Iar 

• Fèis Dhùn Bhreatainn an Iar received a grant from Bòrd na Gàidhlig to buy two laptops. Their 
current laptops are too old to run any classes online. 

• Now that they have the money to purchase the laptops, I will be working with Bernard to get 
the classes up and running 

 
Fèis Dhùn Èideann 

• Fèis Dhùn Eideann are running their weekly classes online currently and they are hoping to 
add a new Gaelic singing class next term  

 
Fèis Òigridh Ìle is Dhiùra 

• Fèis Òigridh Ìle is Dhiùra are running their weekly classes online 
 
Fèis Innis an Uillt 

• Fèis Innis an Uillt are not running any events this year 
 
Fèis Cheann Loch Goibhle 

• Fèis Cheann Loch goibhle do not have any current plans to run a Fèis 
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Fèis Fhoirt 
• Fèis Fhoirt weekly classes are taking place online under the guidance of Katie Allen who is 

their annual hours worker 
• We have cancelled the trip to the Isle of Man and hope to go in October 2021 
• I have submitted applications to the Hugh Fraser charitable Trust and the AEB Charitable 

Trust for support with 2021 running costs 
 
Fèis an Tairbeirt 

• Fèis an Tairbeirt are planning to run an online Fèis in November. They will provide art classes, 
singing classes with photography and music technology courses 

 
Fèis Ghàidhlig Ghlaschu 

• Fèis Ghàidhlig Ghlaschu have no plans currently 
 
Fèis Phàislig 

• Fèis Phàislig are running their weekly classes online 
• FP ran an online Fèis in July and around 40 children took part in their pre-recorded classes 

 
Fèis Arainn 

• Fèis Arainn ran an online Fèis and their pre-recorded classes were all uploaded to Youtube 
and anyone could take part in a class at any time 

• The weekly classes are taking place online and being taught by Gillian Frame 
 

Fèis Lannraig a Tuath 
• Fèis Lannraig a Tuath ran an online Fèis in August and it ran live on Zoom, using a Facebook 

page and email to share information and resources 
• Some of FLT’s classes are taking place online 

 
Fèis Chille Bhrìghde an Ear 

• Fèis Chille Bhìghde an Ear are not currently running any events 
 
Fèis Thatha 

• Fèis Thatha are not currently running any events 
 
A’ leasachadh sgilean is thàlantan 

• I am working through the UHI’s Gaelic Course 
• I attended a workshop with Jed from Tinderbox about Zoom on 11/06/2020 
• I attended Creative Scotland’s Creating Safety: Child Protection in the Creative Sector 

workshop on 01/09/2020 
• I am planning to run a workshop for tutors who are needing some support with teaching 

online and using Zoom, an idea I was given by Alistair Paul from Fèis Arainn 
 

A’ toirt ealain is cultar na Gàidhlig air adhart an lùib oideachadh cruthachail 
 

• Fèis Online Series 1 and 2 went well and I’m currently working on Series 3, with 10 classes 
running each week for 8 weeks. The classes will begin 21/09/2020 

 
Tunes High School Pupils Ewen Henderson 8 participants 
Accompaniment High School Pupils Ingrid Henderson TBC 8 participants 
Whistle Primary School Pupils 

Beginners 
Andrew MacPherson 8 participants 
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Whistle Primary School Pupils 
Intermediate 

Andrew MacPherson 8 participants 

Singing Primary School Pupils 
P1-3 

Mary Anne Kennedy 8 participants 

Singing Primary School Pupils 
P4-7 

Mary Anne Kennedy 8 participants 

Fiddle Primary School Pupils 8+ 
Intermediate 

Chloë Bryce 8 participants 

Singing in Gaelic High School Pupils Josie Duncan 8 participants 
Accordion Primary School Pupils 

Beginners 
Eilidh MacFadyen 8 participants 

Accordion Primary School Pupils 
Intermediate 

Eilidh MacFadyen 8 participants 

 
• I am working with Karen on Fuaran 2020 and supporting my mentor group 

 
 

Name Karen Oakley 
Job Title Development Officer  
 
Support and development of Fèisean 
Fèis Thiriodh 

• Provided Support and guidance to Shari MacKinnon in completing an application to the 
Co-Op Community Fund for 2021 Main Fèis.  

Fèis Òigridh na Mara 
• Completed application with Eilidh Shaw to the Co-Op Community Fund for the ongoing 

classes.  

Fèisean an t-samhraidh air loidhne 
• Liaised with Fèisean who typically ran summer Fèis to discuss what they would like to be 

offered over the summer.  

• Worked with colleagues to plan and help facilitate six weeks of online Fèis teaching. This 
included creating online registration for individual classes, answering tutor and parent 
queries, sorting tutor contracts and sending out links to classes.  

Fèis ongoing classes  
Provided practical support for individual Fèis with class budgets and answering queries. Fèisean 
who are currently running their classes online are: Fèis Òigridh na Mara, Fèis nan Garbh Chrìochan, 
Fèis Lochabair & Fèis Latharna.  
 
General on-going communication with all my Fèisean such as sending information about 
relevant training opportunities.   
 
Updated individual Fèis pages on the FnG website.  
 
Enhancement of skills & creative talent 
Fuaran 2020  

• Eighteen young Gaelic speakers aged 16-25 took part in Fuaran sessions to raise skills and 
confidence in researching Gaelic songs.  

• I liased with visiting tutors and my colleagues Abi Lightbody and Calum MacMillan to plan, 
prepare and help deliver the sessions.  
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• We prepared a support pack outlining the aims and sessions and outcomes for all involved 
and further guidance on specific topics.  

• Provided one-to-one discussions and support to all participants, especially those in my 
‘mentor group’.  

• Liasing with Jo MacDonald who has provided further one-to-one feedback and support to 
all participants in planning and pulling their findings together.  

• I’m continuing to enjoy working with the participants, Jo, Calum and Abi.  
 

Date  Subject Led by  
1 June, 3.30 - 4.30pm Welcome session Abi, Calum & Karen 
4 June,  3.30 – 5pm  Collecting songs  Jo MacDonald 
11 June, 3.30 -5pm & 6.30 – 
8pm 

Using Tobar an Dualchais Flòraidh Forrest, Director of Tobar an Dualchais 

18 June, 3.30 – 5pm Interview skills and 
techniques 

Jo MacDonald 

25 June,  3.30 – 5pm Using technology  Abi, Calum is Karen 
2 July,  3.30 - 5pm Tàr-sgrìobhadh Gillebrìde MacMillan 
July & August Research period  Fuaran participants keeping in contact with Abi, 

Calum, Karen & Jo.  
29 August, 4 - 5pm ‘Sharing’ session – songs 

and conversation 
Abi, Calum is Karen 

 
Duke of Edinburgh Award  
Finlay MacLennan is continuing to volunteer with us every Friday afternoon. He’s one of four 
young people on the Café Bheairteis (CB), steering group. CB is a Gaelic conversation café for 
Gaelic learners and fluent speakers. He helps suggest potential guests and helps prepare questions 
for guests. 
 
Other weeks, he posts a Gaelic word relating to the Year of Coasts and Waters. I help him publicise 
them on our social media channels.  
 
Organising training for Fèis volunteers 
I’m liaising with Fiona Stephenson from NSPCC Scotland, the Development Team and Fèis 
volunteers for bespoke Introduction to Child Protection training for Fèis volunteers, 29 & 30 
September, 5.30 – 7.15pm over Zoom. 
 
Own training 
 

Date Course name Led by 
11 June Advice on using Zoom  Jed Milroy, Tinderbox  
9, 29, July & 6, 20 
August  

Future Leaders for Creative Communities - GM Social Enterprise Academy 

23 & 24 July, 9.30 – 
1.15pm 

Introduction to Oral History Oral History Society 

12 August Equality, Diversity and Inclusion ACAS 
1 September Creating Safety: Child Protection in the Creative 

Sector 
Children in Scotland / Creative 
Scotland  

 
I’ve received great practical support / training from colleagues including help with Eventbrite 
from Calum, 10 July and using our website with Luke Slater, 9 September.  
 
I’m continuing to work through ‘Sgilean Cànain’, a Gaelic grammar online course that’s run by 
Lews Castle College UHI.  
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Enhancement of Gaelic arts & culture in creative learning 
I’ve enjoyed giving advice and practical support to my colleagues Eilidh MacKenzie and Angus 
MacLeod with scripts for Meanbh-Chuileag & Sporan tours.   
 
Café Bheairteis - Each week sees a different ‘guest’ and I’m working with Eilidh to contact 
potential guests for September – December.  
 

 
Name Luke Slater 
Job Title Administrator 
 
Support and development of Fèisean 

• Compiled a list of all carbon emissions created by the Fèisean na Gàidheal team, board  
and tutors 

• Ongoing responses, logging and filing of TASGADH claim forms 
• Implemented a large addition to our database which adds an inventory list. This give us an 

‘at a glance’ look as to where things are, their condition and their details, increasing efficiency 
• Obtained 2 licences from Apple, one for the iBooks store, the other for the App Store.  

Both grant the ability to sell or distribute on their respective platforms 
• Implemented an upgrade to our website CMS, making page building and media uploading 

much simpler 
• Installed hand sanitiser pumps at the Portree office 
• Managed postage for online book sales via FNG website 
• Various bug fixes on the FNG website, dealing with West Coast Media 
• Letters distributed for Goodwill payments 

 
Enhancement of skills & creative talent 

• Continued use of Duolingo to help improve my Gaelic. I have now fully completed the 
course. 

• Multiple website training sessions carried out with various staff members – 6 total 
• Taking part in online conversation groups to help with conversation skills 
• Learned video editing to edit and upload the weekly Year of Coasts and Waters videos and 

their respective website pages 
 
Audience development and engagement 

• Posted 7 promo videos to Facebook as advertising for the Oide website over a 7 week period 
• Created a logo for Maoin nan Ealan Gàidhlig (MEG) 
• Updated the design for application forms and guidelines for MEG and Tasgadh 
• Created digital application forms for Tasgadh and MEG to speed up and simplify the 

application process 
• Weekly video editing and upload of songs for the Year of Coasts and Waters.  15 total videos 

– totalling 1,121 views on YouTube so far  
• Created multiple adverts, posters and website banners for various things. 14 total 
• Design created for YMI resource document, this will be interactive once complete 
• Design and distribution of Faileas 72 
• Ceòl nam Fèis 1 is on the iBooks store and has since sold 9 copies, book 2 will be live soon 
• Posted multiple news articles to the website  
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Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
  

Financial Issues   
Agenda Item: 3.2020.03   
   
   
This report includes:  Action Required 
   

Agenda Item: 3.2020.03(a)   

   

Income and Expenditure 2020-21 with transactions to 31 August 2020.  For Noting and Discussion 

 
 

  

Agenda item 3.2020.03(b)   

   

Current bank balances will be confirmed at the meeting.  Verbal for Noting 

 
 

  

Agenda item 3.2020.03(c)   

   

Management accounts for the period to 30 June 2020, prepared by Mann Judd 
Gordon. 

 For Noting and Discussion 

 
 

  

Agenda item 3.2020.03(d)   

   

Grants pledged to Fèisean for 2020-21 with payments made to 31 August 2020.  For Noting 

 
 

  

Agenda item 3.2020.03(e)   

   

Annual Accounts to 31 March 2020, prepared by Mann Judd Gordon.  For Agreement  

 
 

  

Agenda item 3.2020.03(f)   

   

Since we agreed a three-year contract with Mann Judd Gordon last year, the Board 
should confirm their appointment at the Annual General Meeting as auditors for 
2020-21. 

 
For Agreement  

 
   

Anne Willoughby 
Executive Manager 

          September 2020 
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  Fèisean nan Gàidheal Income and Expenditure 2020-21 with transactions to 31 August 2020 
  Agenda Item 2.2020.03(a) 
 

      

INCOME 2020-21 PERIOD ACTUAL DIFFERENCE  
Core Grants £323,310 £134,713 £236,050 -£101,338 1 
Management Fees £92,500 £38,542 £37,500 £1,042  
Grants Scheme £187,100 £77,958 £71,527 £6,432  
Fèis Development Fund £11,500 £8,331 £12,494 -£4,163  
Annualised Hours £5,000 £4,792 £9,000 -£4,208  
Traditional Arts Small Grants Scheme £85,000 £35,417 £38,750 -£3,333  
Training £6,000 £2,500 £5,000 -£2,500  
Fèisgoil £271,764 £113,235 £47,800 £65,435 2 
Blas Festival £122,500 £51,042 £35,000 £16,042 3 
Other Earned Income £13,800 £5,750 £1,781 £3,969  
Support Cèilidh Trails £54,000 £22,500 £16,993 £5,507  
Gaelic Residential Events £35,053 £14,605 £13,000 £1,605  
Gaelic Song-writing, Archiving, Innovations £12,000 £5,000 £3,000 £2,000  
Showcase and International Opportunities £7,000 £2,917 £3,000 -£83  
Resources and Digitisation Programme £11,500 £4,792 £8,000 -£3,208  
Press/PR/Website Updates/Newsletter £8,400 £3,500 £1,000 £2,500  
FèisTV £34,800 £14,500 £20,000 -£5,500  
Income still to be raised £0 £0 £5,000 -£5,000  
TOTAL INCOME £1,296,221 £540,092 £564,894 -£24,802  
      

EXPENDITURE      
RUNNING COSTS      
Staff Salaries £304,400 £126,833 £130,507 -£3,673  
NIC Contributions £29,282 £12,201 £10,170 £2,031  
Pension Contributions £15,917 £6,632 £6,525 £107  
Staff Travel, Accommodation & Subsistence £6,250 £2,604 £79 £2,526  
Office Rent & Rates £31,000 £12,917 £8,432 £4,485  
Stationery, Printing, Postage & Photocopiers £13,000 £5,417 £4,434 £983  
Utilities and Communications £14,600 £6,083 £6,688 -£605  
Board Expenses £1,000 £417 £779 -£362  
PVG Service £8,000 £3,333 £1,602 £1,731  
Insurance £10,250 £4,271 £0 £4,271  
Sundry Expenses £1,000 £417 £730 -£313  
Accountancy & Bank Charges £7,400 £3,083 £245 £2,838  
Professional Fees £3,000 £1,250 £512 £738  
Instrument Bank Maintenance £2,000 £833 £522 £311  
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Additional Support Needs £1,500 £625 £0 £625  
Capital Expenses  £3,000 £1,250 £0 £1,250  
PROGRAMME COSTS      
Grants to Fèisean £188,098 £78,374 £57,283 £21,091 4 
Annualised Hours £11,504 £4,793 £0 £4,793  
Fèis Development Fund £24,994 £10,414 £0 £10,414  
Creative Scotland Grants Schemes £85,000 £35,417 £10,780 £24,637 5 
Traditional Arts Small Grants Scheme Management Fee -£8,500 -£3,542 -£8,500 £4,958  
Training Programme £6,000 £2,500 £1,000 £1,500  
Training Programme Management Fee -£1,000 -£417 -£1,000 £583  
Fèisgoil £271,764 £113,235 £18,846 £94,389 6 
Fèisgoil Management Fee -£50,000 -£20,833 -£10,000 -£10,833  
Annual Conference £4,009 £1,670 £0 £1,670  
Blas Festival £122,500 £51,042 £0 £51,042 7 
Blas Festival Management Fee -£15,000 -£6,250 £0 -£6,250  
Support Cèilidh Trails £20,000 £8,333 £12,210 -£3,877  
Cèilidh Trails Management Fee -£5,000 -£2,083 -£5,000 £2,917  
Gaelic Residential Events £35,053 £14,605 £25,821 -£11,216 8 
Gaelic Residential Events Management Fee -£3,000 -£1,250 -£3,000 £1,750  
Gaelic Song-writing, Archiving etc £12,000 £5,000 £3,200 £1,800  
Gaelic Song-writing, Archiving etc Management Fee -£2,000 -£833 -£2,000 £1,167  
Press/PR/Website Updates/Newsletter £8,400 £3,500 £1,644 £1,856  
Showcase & International Opportunities  £7,000 £2,917 £3,360 -£443  
Showcase & International Opportunities Management Fee -£2,000 -£833 -£2,000 £1,167  
Resources and Digitisation Programme £11,500 £4,792 £4,764 £28  
Resources and Digitisation Management Fee -£3,000 -£1,250 -£3,000 £1,750  
FèisTV £34,800 £14,500 £7,325 £7,175  
FèisTV Management Fee -£2,000 -£833 -£2,000 £1,167  
Contingency £2,000 £833 £0 £833  
SUB-TOTAL EXPENDITURE £1,203,721 £501,550 £279,958 £221,593  
Management Fees £92,500 £38,542 £37,500 £1,042  
TOTAL EXPENDITURE £1,296,221 £540,092 £317,458 £222,634  
Transfer to Reserves £9,250 £3,854 £0 £3,854  
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) £0 £0 £247,437 -£247,437  
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Notes:  

1. Creative Scotland funding received per cashflow      
2. & 6. YMIS income still to be received, Fèisgoil activities restricted      
3. & 7. Highland council income for Blas confirmed but still to be received, no expenditure     
4. Grants paid out to Fèisean based on permitted activities       

 

5. Gàidhlig Devolved Fund (CS) still to be set-up      
 

8. Includes #cleachdiaigantaigh expenditure      
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Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
Management Accounts to 30 June 2020 
Agenda Item: 3.2020.03(c) 
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Grants to Fèisean 2020-21 with payment to 31.08.2020 
Agenda Item: 3.2020.03(d) 
 
The following table details the grants agreed for Fèisean in 2020-21 with amounts paid to the above date. 
 

Fèis Name HIE 
HIE 

Fragile Main Fèis Grant Local Authority Follow-on Grants 
Annual 
Hours 

Annualised Hours 
Grant 

Additional
/Dev 
Fund Total Grant Offered Balance Paid 

Outstanding 
Balance 

The Highland Council                       
Fèis an Earraich √ √ £3,029.00 £3,946.00 £5,628.70 50 £ 465.00 £ 0.00 £ 13,068.70 £ 7,561.00 £ 5,507.70 
Fèis Lochabair      √   £1,270.00 £1,655.00 £9,394.70 70 £ 651.00 £ 0.00 £ 12,970.70 £ 2,750.00 £ 10,220.70 
Fèis nan Garbh Chrìochan √ √ £1,351.00 £1,759.00 £5,565.70 70 £ 651.00 £ 0.00 £ 9,326.70 £ 2,500.00 £ 6,826.70 
Fèis Chataibh     √   £1,791.00 £2,334.00 £3,003.00 30 £ 279.00 £ 0.00 £ 7,407.00 £ 0.00 £ 7,407.00 
Fèis a' Bhealaich √ √ £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 
Fèis Eige √ √ £576.00 £750.00 £420.00 30 £ 279.00 £ 0.00 £ 2,025.00 £ 108.00 £ 1,917.00 
Fèis Ghallaibh √ √ £0.00 £0.00 £2,270.80 30 £ 279.00 £ 0.00 £ 2,549.80 £ 0.00 £ 2,549.80 
Fèis Farr √   £0.00 £0.00 £486.50 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 486.50 £ 0.00 £ 486.50 
Fèis na h-Òige √   £1,933.00 £2,517.00 £996.10 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 5,446.10 £ 837.00 £ 4,609.10 
Fèis Air an Oir √ √ £2,171.00 £2,829.00 £3,500.00 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 8,500.00 £ 0.00 £ 8,500.00 
Fèis Ghleann Albainn √   £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 
Fèis Rois √ √ £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 
Fèis a' Bhaile   √   £1,235.00 £1,608.00 £2,366.00 30 £ 279.00 £ 0.00 £ 5,488.00 £ 1,439.00 £ 4,049.00 
Fèis Òigridh na Mara √ √ £662.00 £862.00 £3,475.50 70 £ 651.00 £ 0.00 £ 5,650.50 £ 3,968.00 £ 1,682.50 
Fèis Inbhir Narann √   £527.00 £686.00 £3,500.00 70 £ 651.00 £ 0.00 £ 5,364.00 £ 1,505.00 £ 3,859.00 
Fèis Spè √   £1,237.00 £1,613.00 £2,800.00 30 £ 279.00 £ 0.00 £ 5,929.00 £ 1,404.00 £ 4,525.00 
Fèis an Iar Thuath √ √ £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 
Fèis Thròndairnis √ √ £1,183.00 £1,541.00 £0.00 20 £ 186.00 £ 0.00 £ 2,910.00 £ 0.00 £ 2,910.00 
Fèis a' Chaolais √   £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 
Total Highland     £16,965.00 £22,100.00 £43,407.00 500 £4,650.00 £0.00 £87,122.00 £22,072.00 £65,050.00 
Comhairle nan Eilean Siar                       
Fèis Tìr a' Mhurain √ √ £3,694.00 £0.00 £865.20 40 £ 372.00 £ 0.00 £ 4,931.20 £ 750.00 £ 4,181.20 
Fèis Eilean an Fhraoich √   £4,348.00 £0.00 £2,217.60 60 £ 558.00 £ 0.00 £ 7,123.60 £ 1,000.00 £ 6,123.60 
Fèis Tìr an Eòrna  √ √ £2,975.00 £0.00 £625.10 40 £ 372.00 £ 0.00 £ 3,972.10 £ 448.00 £ 3,524.10 
Fèis Bharraigh √ √ £4,060.00 £0.00 £2,128.00 60 £ 558.00 £ 0.00 £ 6,746.00 £ 1,351.00 £ 5,395.00 
Fèis Eilean na Hearadh  √ √ £1,840.00 £0.00 £126.00 30 £ 279.00 £ 0.00 £ 2,245.00 £ 0.00 £ 2,245.00 
Fèis an Rubha √   £1,478.00 £0.00 £1,002.00 30 £ 279.00 £ 0.00 £ 2,759.00 £ 1,002.00 £ 1,757.00 
Fèis Taigh Dhonnchaidh √ √ £1,010.00 £0.00 £2,764.30 30 £ 279.00 £ 0.00 £ 4,053.30 £ 1,918.00 £ 2,135.30 
Total Comhairle nan Eilean Siar £19,405.00 £0.00 £9,728.20 290 £2,697.00 £0.00 £31,830.20 £6,469.00 £25,361.20 
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Argyll & Bute Council                       
Fèis Latharna         √   £2,700.00 £3,500.00 £3,763.20 70 £ 651.00 £ 0.00 £ 10,614.20 £ 6,200.00 £ 4,414.20 
Fèis Mhuile √ √ £412.00 £500.00 £0.00 10 £ 93.00 £ 0.00 £ 1,005.00 £ 0.00 £ 1,005.00 
Fèis Thiriodh √ √ £1,050.00 £2,500.00 £327.40 30 £ 279.00 £ 0.00 £ 4,156.40 £ 0.00 £ 4,156.40 
Fèis Ìle agus Dhùira √ √ £1,117.00 £3,000.00 £2,660.60 30 £ 279.00 £ 0.00 £ 7,056.60 £ 0.00 £ 7,056.60 
Fèis na h-Apainne √ √ £0.00 £1,000.00 £1,116.80 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 2,116.80 £ 1,000.00 £ 1,116.80 
Fèis Cheann Loch Goibhle √   £165.00 £500.00 £254.80 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 919.80 £ 0.00 £ 919.80 
Fèis an Tairbeirt √   £0.00 £1,000.00 £1,519.30 40 £ 372.00 £ 0.00 £ 2,891.30 £ 1,790.00 £ 1,101.30 
Total Argyll & Bute Council £5,444.00 £12,000.00 £9,642.10 180 £ 1,674.00 £0.00 £28,760.10 £8,990.00 £19,770.10 
Other Area/City Councils                       
Fèis Arainn  √   £4,408.00 £0.00 £2,625.00 30 £ 279.00 £ 0.00 £ 7,312.00 £ 4,408.00 £ 2,904.00 
Fèis Mhoireibh √ √ £1,262.00 £0.00 £383.60 10 £ 93.00 £ 0.00 £ 1,738.60 £ 0.00 £ 1,738.60 
TOTAL HIE 37 23 £47,484.00 £34,100.00 £65,785.90 1,010 £ 9,393.00 £0.00 £156,762.90 £41,939.00 £114,823.90 
Fèis Dhùn Èideann     £2,588.00 £0.00 £9,456.30 67 £ 623.10 £ 0.00 £ 12,667.40 £ 0.00 £ 12,667.40 
Fèis Obar Dheathain      £1,838.00 £0.00 £154.00 10 £ 93.00 £ 0.00 £ 2,085.00 £ 1,838.00 £ 247.00 
Fèis Dhùn Bhreatainn     £0.00 £0.00 £1,866.20 10 £ 93.00 £ 0.00 £ 1,959.20 £ 0.00 £ 1,959.20 
Fèis Lannraig a Tuath     £1,394.00 £0.00 £819.00 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 2,213.00 £ 1,394.00 £ 819.00 
Fèis Fhoirt     £2,738.00 £0.00 £4,872.00 55 £ 511.50 £ 0.00 £ 8,121.50 £ 2,832.00 £ 5,289.50 
Fèis Ghàidhlig Ghlaschu     £3,350.00 £0.00 £184.10 30 £ 279.00 £ 0.00 £ 3,813.10 £ 3,350.00 £ 463.10 
Fèis Chille Bhrìghde an Ear     £0.00 £0.00 £261.80 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 261.80 £ 0.00 £ 261.80 
Fèis Innis an Uillt     £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 
Fèis an Iar Dheas     £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 
Fèis Phàislig     £4,040.00 £0.00 £5,084.80 55 £ 511.50 £ 0.00 £ 9,636.30 £ 5,930.00 £ 3,706.30 
Fèis Thatha     £0.00 £0.00 £2,081.80 0 £ 0.00 £ 0.00 £ 2,081.80 £ 0.00 £ 2,081.80 
Total Other Areas/City Councils  £21,618.00 £0.00 £27,788.60 267 £2,483.10 £0.00 £51,889.70 £19,752.00 £32,137.70 
      Main Fèis Grant Local Authority Follow-on Grants 

Annual 
Hours 

Annualised Hours 
Grant 

Devt. 
Fund Total Grant Offered Balance Paid 

Outstanding 
Balance 

GRAND TOTALS     £ 63,432.00 £ 34,100.00 £ 90,565.90 1,237 £ 11,504.10 £ 0.00 £ 199,602.00 £ 57,283.00 £ 142,319.00 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Report of the Trustees 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
 
The trustees who are also directors of the charity for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006, present their report with 
the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 March 2020. The trustees have adopted the provisions of 
Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) 
(effective 1 January 2019).  
 
OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES 
Objectives and aims 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal's mission is to inspire young people to value our culture - a' toirt ar dualchais do ar n-òigridh. 
 
The organisation's ambition is to develop the creative talent of young people by supporting opportunities for communities 
across Scotland to engage with and enjoy Gaelic arts and culture, promoting traditional arts and Gaelic language as unique 
and defining assets that contribute to Scotland's distinctiveness. 
 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal operates across four main areas of activity: 
1. Support and Development of Fèisean 
2. Enhancement of Skills & Creative Talent 
3. Enhancement of Gaelic Arts & Culture in Creative Learning 
4. Audience Engagement and Development 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Report of the Trustees 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
ACHIEVEMENT AND PERFORMANCE 
Performance against objectives 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal's published Annual report for 2019-20 outlines activity in a busy and successful year although of 
course affected, towards its end, by the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
Our year-round programme is agreed with Creative Scotland, HIE and Bòrd na Gàidhlig.  We also delivered a number 
of services through contracts with The Highland Council, Argyll & Bute Council and secured funding from the Scottish 
Government for a range of Gaelic projects. 
 
Work developed in new Fèisean alongside the regular, sterling work undertaken by the more established members. Thanks 
to all the volunteers who give of their time to support the development of Gaelic arts, language and culture through the 
local Fèis network, a tremendous programme was offered supporting young people, and those not so young, throughout 
Scotland. 
 
International work took place with young Gaelic singers performing at Celtic Colours in Cape Breton, an ongoing 
exchange visit with a group from Dundalk in Ireland, attendance by Fèis an Earraich at an international dance festival in 
Germany and the founding, along with other organisations, of the International Folk Network. 
 
Cèilidh Trails were a feature of summer holidays once more, with young musicians performing in their local communities 
and way beyond.  These young people are remarkable ambassadors for traditional music generally and the Fèis 
movement in particular. 
 
The demand for our Fèisgoil services continued to grow.  We renewed longer-standing contracts and gained new ones 
with a number of local authorities and public bodies and the drama work in schools was particularly impressive, engaging 
a very large number of pupils. 
 
The Blas Festival went ahead later than normal, but was very successful in its November slot, drawing out a largely local 
audience who clearly appreciated the events, confirmed by the exceptionally high approval rating offered in audience 
feedback. 
 
FèisTV's output continued to grow with more and more events streamed from Fèisean, Cèilidh Trails and Blas events. 
Oide, our online tuition service, was launched offering a range of online lessons delivered in a choice of Gaelic and 
English. 
 
We were particularly happy to be able to offer this service free of charge when the Covid-19 lockdown brought face-to-
face classes to a halt. 
 
In common with all organisations, Fèisean nan Gàidheal had to cope with major changes in its programme delivery due 
to the Covid-19 pandemic. Our initial focus was first and foremost on shielding the Fèisean from the financial difficulties 
they may have experienced, ensuring all tutors who had work cancelled were nevertheless paid in full and helping Fèisean 
to continue offering their activities in an online format.  In addition, we devised an entirely new online programme to 
complement the Fèisean and, importantly, continued to offer employment to freelance creatives. 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Report of the Trustees 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
 
ACHIEVEMENT AND PERFORMANCE 
Fundraising activities 
During the year, Creative Scotland indicated that it would be extending our regular funding agreement by a year to 31 
March 2022. Fèisean nan Gàidheal is pleased to have the relative security of multi-year funding agreements with Creative 
Scotland, HIE and Bòrd na Gàidhlig. 
 
The support of all three organisations during the Covid-19 pandemic meant that Fèisean nan Gàidheal was able to adapt 
and continue as best it could, with notable success, to deliver a very full programme while people were in their homes 
during lockdown and children were not able to attend school. 
 
The security of agreements with Creative Scotland, HIE and Bòrd na Gàidhlig enabled Fèisean nan Gàidheal to deliver 
its programme successfully without the constant need to raise new funding for projects. These funds also enable us to 
lever in additional funds and Fèisean nan Gàidheal's team continued to do that and Development Officers assisted Fèisean 
with fund-raising in their localities. A weekend of masterclasses was run with funding secured from the Royal Edinburgh 
Military Tattoo Youth Talent Development Fund. 
 
Our Fèisgoil service again contributed significantly to our income through the delivery of contracts for third parties, the 
management fees from which are reinvested to ensure funding for Fèisean is protected as much as possible in the current, 
difficult financial climate. 
 
Local authority funding remained challenging but we secured funding from Argyll & Bute Council for the Fèisean in that 
area and also to part-fund the Development Officers who support them. The Highland Council continued to fund the local 
Fèisean and the 2019 Blas Festival although the late confirmation of funding forced us to run Blas in November, rather 
than September, which had an impact on attendance figures. 
 
Internal and external factors 
We saw some changes in staffing during the year. Rowan Paterson left to take up a post at Glasgow University and we 
welcomed Abi Lightbody in her place.  Laura Nicolson took up a newly-created post of Project Officer and Luke Slater 
joined us as Administrator. 
 
We contracted individuals to augment the core staff team during the year, in particular Sandy Gray (Child Protection 
Coordinator), Chrissie Macrae (Blas Coordinator), Katie Mackenzie (Press/PR and Fèisgoil) and Eilidh Cormack 
(Fèisgoil). 
 
Rona Morrison was employed on a student placement during summer 2019. Based in Harris, she supported local Fèisean 
with preparation and delivery of their events. 
 
During the year we have supported Finlay MacLennan through a partnership with Young Scot and he has gained work 
experience with us each Friday afternoon in our Inverness Office which has also contributed to his Duke of Edinburgh 
Award. 
 
Due to funding constraints, staff worked across the range of services and project in which Fèisean nan Gàidheal was 
involved, rather than sticking rigidly to their job descriptions. As a result, a very full programme was delivered with a 
relatively small team. 
 
The Covid-19 lockdown towards the end of the financial year resulted in all staff working from home and our work 
patterns had to change to accommodate that. 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW 
Financial position 
The 2019-20 outturn is satisfactory and we have sums accrued for projects which will be undertaken in 2020-21. 
 
Principal funding sources 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal received grant-aid from a variety of bodies notably Creative Scotland, Highlands & Islands 
Enterprise and Bòrd na Gàidhlig. We also secured contract income from The Highland Council, Argyll & Bute Council, 
High Life Highland, Falkirk Council, Glasgow City Council, the National Collections, Eden Court, An Comunn 
Gàidhealach and a number of other bodies for which we delivered services. 
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 
Reserves policy 
Having achieved our aim of maintaining 3 months' operating costs in reserve at all times, we have again increased our 
reserve slightly. Management fees received for delivering contracts such as Blas and Fèisgoil activities enable us to 
reinvest in the activities of local Fèisean. 
 
Our reserves are principally to enable the organisation to fulfil contractual obligations in the event it requires to be wound 
up. The only likely scenario in which this would occur would be if funding from our major stakeholder, Creative Scotland, 
were to be withdrawn. We would likely have around 6 months' notice if that were to happen and, if reorganisation proved 
impossible, our reserves would enable us to cover redundancy payments, other liabilities and obligations, currently 
estimated to cost a maximum of £152,000. Given the period of notice attached to the withdrawal of funding, it is very 
likely the company could be wound up with lower costs but, with unrestricted funds in excess of £280,000, we should 
cope comfortably with such a scenario. 
 
FUTURE PLANS 
In common with all organisations across Scotland, Covid-19 curtailed our programme delivery towards the end of 2019-
20.  While the timing of the effects of the pandemic meant that was fairly minor, it was expected that our programme 
would be further disrupted in 2020-21. 
 
An entirely new online programme was devised to complement the work Fèisean were able to undertake online. 
Importantly, we continued to offer employment to freelance creatives, albeit a reduced number. 
 
It is difficult to predict what lies ahead.  Covid is likely will affect our lives for the immediate future and, in terms of 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal's programme, it could be some time before people feel comfortable attending events or allowing 
their children to take part in activities. 
 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal will do its best to ensure that the Gaelic language is used and our culture promoted and passed on 
despite physical barriers. There is no doubt participation in cultural activities promotes wellbeing and that has been more 
important than ever over the past year. It acknowledging the contribution of all the artists who have helped foster our 
good health we aim to place at the centre of what we do in the coming year their need to make a living to continue what 
they do best. 
 
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
Governing document 
The charity is controlled by its governing document, a deed of trust, and constitutes a limited company, limited by 
guarantee, as defined by the Companies Act 2006.  
 
Recruitment and appointment of new trustees 
During the year 3 trustees stood down from the Board of Trustee, having served the maximum term permissible and 3 
new trustees were recruited, including 2 new youth representatives. Following nominations by local Fèisean an election 
was held in which the entire membership had the opportunity to participate. Two further places remained unfilled at the 
year end. 
 
Organisational structure 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal is governed by a Board of Trustees made up of up to 10 Fèis representatives and 2 youth 
representatives elected by the membership, along with observers from the main funding bodies which support the 
organisation. The Board met 4 times during the year. All Board papers are published routinely on the organisation's 
website, as is its Annual Report and Financial Statements. 
 
Induction and training of new trustees 
All new trustees took part in an induction session which included a presentation outlining the aims and objectives of the 
organisation, the work in which it is involved, sources of funding as well as the responsibilities of trustees as directors of 
a company limited by guarantee and a registered charity. 
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STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
Wider network 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal continued its sponsorship of the Traditional Music Hall of Fame at the 2019 Scots Trad Music 
Awards.  The performer inductees were; Wendy Stewart, Wolfstone, John Wilson, Mairi MacInnes, Jimmy Hutchison, 
John Ellis, Gaberlunzie, Mairi Campbell, Hector MacAndrew and Lizzie Higgins. 
 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal continued to work closely with organisations and projects to promote the Gaelic language, culture 
and the traditional arts. We regularly engage with our funding bodies and throughout 2019-20 staff attended various 
conferences, seminars and information sessions organised by them. 
 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal staff were actively involved in a range of advocacy and promotional work collaborating with a 
number of networks and organisations across Scotland such as; the Creative Scotland's Traditional Arts Working Group, 
the Highland Youth Music Forum, the Highland Youth Arts Hub, Hands Up for Trad, An Comunn Gàidhealach, Comunn 
na Gàidhlig and the Music Education Partnership Group. 
 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal's CEO gave a presentation at an international conference in Cape Breton in October 2019. Fèisean 
nan Gàidheal was one of the founder members of the International Folk Network and over the past year we have been 
members of Amateo and hope that this will provide exciting new international activities for young people in the future. 
 
The organisation routinely submitted comments to public consultations on the Gaelic Language Plans of a number of 
organisations and staff and Board members engaged in advocacy work connected to our local authority funding. 
 
Related parties 
The trustees are members of local Fèisean which receive grants from the charity from time to time.  The sums which 
were approved for each year were as follows: 
 
Name  Status  Fèis  2020  2019 
Elizabeth Bain  Trustee  Fèis Cheann Loch Goibhle  £2,373  £3,961 
Kirsteen Graham  Trustee  Fèis an Earraich  £35,219  £23,262 
Anne MacAulay  Trustee  Fèis an Rubha  £1,478  £2,436 
Kirsty MacDougall  Trustee  Fèis an Earraich  £35,219  n/a 
Katie MacInnes  Trustee  Fèis Eilean an Fhraoich  £7,908  n/a 
Bob MacKinnon  Trustee  Fèis Dhùn Bhreatainn an Iar  £2,170  £741 
Anna Murray  Trustee  Fèis Eilean an Fhraoich  £7,908  £10,193 
Alistair Paul  Trustee  Fèis Arainn  £6,030  n/a 
Colin Sandilands  Trustee  Fèis Farr  £413  £252 
Sarah-Jayne Shankland  Trustee  Fèis nan Garbh Chrìochan  £12,539  £18,362 
George Stoddart  Trustee  Fèis Fhoirt  £20,877  £26,314 
 
It should be noted that the grants scheme operated allocates funding on the basis of a formula under powers delegated to 
the Chief Executive.  Board members do not, therefore, discuss the level of grant aid for individual Fèisean although 
they approve the overall sums involved annually. 
 
Risk management 
The trustees acknowledge their duty to identify and review the risks to which the charity is exposed and to ensure 
appropriate controls are in place to provide reasonable assurance against fraud, error and other circumstances. 
 
Risk is a day-to-day consideration. A risk register is maintained by Fèisean nan Gàidheal, managed by the staff and 
monitored annually by the Board. 
 
Nobody could have predicted the effect Covid-19 would have on our lives and the operation of all organisations.  Such 
an eventuality is now reflected in Fèisean nan Gàidheal's risk register and we will continue to assess what needs to be 
done to protect staff, Board members, participants, tutors and audiences while the current pandemic persists, as well as 
being better equipped to deal with any future pandemic. 
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REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS 
Registered Company number 
SC130071 (Scotland) 
 
Registered Charity number 
SC002040 
 
Registered office 
Meall House 
Portree 
Isle of Skye 
IV51 9BZ 
 
Trustees 
Colin Sandilands  
Sarah-Jayne Shankland  
Anne Catherine Macaulay  
Anna Murray  
George Keiller Stoddart  
Katie Macinnes   (appointed 6.3.20)  
Carola Maccallum   (appointed 6.3.20)  
Kirsty Macdougall   (appointed 6.3.20)  
Alistair Ian Paul   (appointed 6.3.20)  
Angela Mack    (appointed 6.3.20)  
Robert Allan Mackinnon  (resigned 6.3.20)  
Kirsteen Anne Graham   (resigned 6.3.20)  
Elizabeth Blyth Bain  (resigned 6.3.20)  
 
Company Secretary 
Colin Sandilands  
 
Auditors 
Mann Judd Gordon Ltd 
Registered Auditors & 
Chartered Accountants 
26 Lewis Street 
Stornoway 
Isle of Lewis 
HS1 2JF 
 
Chief Executive 
Arthur Cormack 
 
STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES 
The trustees (who are also the directors of Feisean nan Gaidheal for the purposes of company law) are responsible for 
preparing the Report of the Trustees and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including Financial Reporting 
Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland"  
 
Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the 
income and expenditure, of the charitable company for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the trustees 
are required to  
 
- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;  
- observe the methods and principles in the Charity SORP;  
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable 

company will continue in business.  
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES - continued 
The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the charitable company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with 
the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for 
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.  
 
In so far as the trustees are aware:  
 
- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware; and  
- the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 

information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.  
 
The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the 
charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of 
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.  
 
AUDITORS 
The auditors, Mann Judd Gordon Ltd, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of Companies Act 2006 relating to 
small companies.  
 
Approved by order of the board of trustees on 25 September 2020 and signed on its behalf by:  
 
 
 
 
 
Anna Murray - Trustee  
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 Report of the Independent Auditors to the Trustees and Members of 
 Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Fèisean nan Gàidheal (the 'charitable company') for the year ended 
31 March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland'.  
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 
- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its incoming 

resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;  
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including 

Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland'; 
and  

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities and Trustee 
Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and Regulation 8 of the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006.  

 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report.  We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, 
and the provisions available for small entities, in the circumstances set out in note 22 to the financial statements, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to 
you where:  
- the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not 

appropriate; or  
- the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant 

doubt about the charitable company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period 
of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  

 
Other information 
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to 
report in this regard.  
 
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 
- the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 

is consistent with the financial statements; and  
- the Report of the Trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.  
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the course of 
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Trustees.  
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities Accounts 
(Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended) requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:  
- adequate and proper accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received 

from branches not visited by us; or  
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or  
- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or  
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or  
- the trustees were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption from the requirement to prepare a 

Strategic Report or in preparing the Report of the Trustees.  
 
Responsibilities of trustees 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 
trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  
 
Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that includes our opinion.  
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting 
Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report of the Independent 
Auditors.  
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Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of 
the Companies Act 2006, and to the charitable company's trustees, as a body, in accordance with Regulation 10 of the 
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
charitable company's members and the trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and 
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 
the opinions we have formed.  
 
 
 
 
A Cumming CA (Senior Statutory Auditor)  
for and on behalf of Mann Judd Gordon Ltd  
Registered Auditors & 
Eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006  
Chartered Accountants 
26 Lewis Street 
Stornoway 
Isle of Lewis 
HS1 2JF 
 
25 September 2020 
 
Note: 
The maintenance and integrity of the Fèisean nan Gàidheal website is the responsibility of the trustees; the work carried 
out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility 
for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.  
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
GROUP 
 Statement of Financial Activities 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 Unrestricted  Restricted  Total  Total 
 fund  funds  funds  funds 
 Notes £ £ £ £ 
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM  
Donations and legacies  2 - - - 100 
 
Charitable activities  5 
Core activities  712,904 73,750 786,654 788,610 
Training  6,000 - 6,000 5,290 
Blas Festival  122,542 - 122,542 290,775 
Fèisgoil  330,461 55,000 385,461 286,727 
Gaelic residential  33,240 - 33,240 29,900 
 
Other trading activities  3 115,609 - 115,609 113,923 
Investment income  4 1,113 - 1,113 717 

       
Total  1,321,869 128,750 1,450,619 1,516,042 
 
 
EXPENDITURE ON  
Raising funds  6 3,190 - 3,190 1,609 
 
Charitable activities  7 
Core activities  792,559 82,797 875,356 845,262 
Training  6,107 - 6,107 5,180 
Blas Festival  114,830 4,808 119,638 289,676 
Fèisgoil  316,970 25,501 342,471 319,377 
Gaelic residential  33,341 - 33,341 27,344 
 

       
Total  1,266,997 113,106 1,380,103 1,488,448 
 

       
NET INCOME  54,872 15,644 70,516 27,594 
 
 
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS  
 
Total funds brought forward  233,605 48,500 282,105 254,511 
 

       
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD  288,477 64,144 352,621 282,105 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
CHARITY ONLY 
 Statement of Financial Activities 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 Unrestricted  Restricted  Total  Total 
 fund  funds  funds  funds 
 Notes £ £ £ £ 
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM  
Donations and legacies   2,482 - 2,482 100 
 
Charitable activities   
Core activities  712,904 73,750 786,654 788,610 
Training  6,000 - 6,000 5,290 
Fèisgoil  330,461 55,000 385,461 286,727 
Gaelic development  33,240 - 33,240 29,900 
 
Other trading activities   115,609 - 115,609 113,923 
Investment income   1,113 - 1,113 717 

       
Total  1,201,809 128,750 1,330,559 1,225,267 
 
 
EXPENDITURE ON  
Raising funds   3,190 - 3,190 1,609 
 
Charitable activities   
Core activities  792,560 82,797 875,357 844,192 
Training  6,107 - 6,107 5,180 
Fèisgoil  316,970 25,501 342,471 319,377 
Gaelic development  33,341 - 33,341 27,344 
 

       
Total  1,152,168 108,298 1,260,466 1,197,702 
 

       
NET INCOME  49,641 20,452 70,093 27,565 
 
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS  
 
Total funds brought forward  234,949 48,500 283,449 255,884 
 

       
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD  284,590 68,952 353,542 283,449 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL   REGISTERED COMPANY NUMBER: SC130071 (Scotland) 
GROUP 
 Balance Sheet 
 31 March 2020 
 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 Unrestricted  Restricted  Total  Total 
 fund  funds  funds  funds 
 Notes £ £ £ £ 
FIXED ASSETS  
Tangible assets  16 28,899 - 28,899 - 
 
CURRENT ASSETS  
Debtors  17 109,179 15,750 124,929 52,782 
Cash at bank  182,382 60,119 242,501 292,014 

       
 291,561 75,869 367,430 344,796 
 
CREDITORS  
Amounts falling due within one year  18 (31,983) (11,725) (43,708) (62,691) 
 

       
NET CURRENT ASSETS  259,578 64,144 323,722 282,105 

       
 
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
LIABILITIES  

 
288,477 

 
64,144 

 
352,621 

 
282,105 

 
       

NET ASSETS  288,477 64,144 352,621 282,105 
       

FUNDS  20 
Unrestricted funds  288,477 233,605 
Restricted funds  64,144 48,500 

   
TOTAL FUNDS  352,621 282,105 

   
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to charitable companies 
subject to the small companies regime.  
 
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees and authorised for issue on 25 September 2020 and 
were signed on its behalf by:  
 
 
 
 
 
Colin Sandilands - Trustee 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
CHARITY ONLY 
 Balance Sheet 
 31 March 2020 
 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 Unrestricted  Restricted  Total  Total 
 fund  funds  funds  funds 
 Notes £ £ £ £ 
FIXED ASSETS  
Tangible assets  16 28,899 - 28,899 - 
Investments   1 - 1 1 

       
 28,900 - 28,900 1 
 
CURRENT ASSETS  
Debtors  17 109,487 15,750 125,237 52,782 
Cash at bank  176,382 64,927 241,309 290,402 

       
 285,869 80,677 366,546 343,184 
 
CREDITORS  
Amounts falling due within one year  18 (30,179) (11,725) (41,904) (59,736) 
 

       
NET CURRENT ASSETS  255,690 68,952 324,642 283,448 

       
 
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
LIABILITIES  

 
284,590 

 
68,952 

 
353,542 

 
283,449 

 
       

NET ASSETS  284,590 68,952 353,542 283,449 
       

FUNDS   
Unrestricted funds  284,590 234,949 
Restricted funds  68,952 48,500 

   
TOTAL FUNDS  353,542 283,449 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
GROUP 
 Cash Flow Statement 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 Notes £ £ 
 
Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash generated from operations  1 (21,727) 32,200 

   
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities  (21,727) 32,200 

   
 
Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (28,899) - 
Interest received 1,113 717 

   
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities  (27,786) 717 

   
 

   
Change in cash and cash equivalents in 
the reporting period  

 
(49,513) 

 
32,917 

Cash and cash equivalents at the 
beginning of the reporting period  

 
292,014 

 
259,097 

   
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 
the reporting period  

 
242,501 

 
292,014 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
CHARITY ONLY 
 Cash Flow Statement 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 Notes £ £ 
 
Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash generated from operations  1 (21,307) 32,406 

   
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities  (21,307) 32,406 

   
 
Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (28,899) - 
Interest received 1,113 717 

   
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities  (27,786) 717 

   
 

   
Change in cash and cash equivalents in 
the reporting period  

 
(49,093) 

 
33,123 

Cash and cash equivalents at the 
beginning of the reporting period  

 
290,402 

 
257,279 

   
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 
the reporting period  

 
241,309 

 
290,402 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Cash Flow Statement 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
1. RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING 

ACTIVITIES  
 
Group 

 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Net income for the reporting period (as per the Statement of Financial 

Activities)  
 

70,516 
 

27,594 
 Adjustments for: 
 Depreciation charges - 5,170 
 Interest received (1,113) (717) 
 Increase in debtors (72,147) (9,393) 
 (Decrease)/increase in creditors (18,983) 9,546 

   
 Net cash (used in)/provided by operations  (21,727) 32,200 

   
 Charity 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Net income for the reporting period (as per the Statement of Financial 

Activities)  
 

70,093 
 

27,565 
 Adjustments for: 
 Depreciation charges - 5,170 
 Interest received (1,113) (717) 
 Increase in debtors (72,455) (7,835) 
 (Decrease)/increase in creditors (17,832) 8,223 

   
 Net cash (used in)/provided by operations  (21,307) 32,406 

   
 
2. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS  
 
 Group 
 At 1.4.19 Cash flow At 31.3.20 
 £ £ £ 

Net cash  
 Cash at bank 292,014 (49,513) 242,501 

      
 292,014 (49,513) 242,501 

      
 Total 292,014 (49,513) 242,501 

      
  
 Charity 
 At 1.4.19 Cash flow At 31.3.20 
 £ £ £ 

Net cash  
 Cash at bank 290,402 (49,093) 241,309 

      
 290,402 (49,093) 241,309 

      
 Total 290,402 (49,093) 241,309 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 

Basis of preparing the financial statements  
The financial statements of the charitable company, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been 
prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement 
of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2019)', Financial 
Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' and the 
Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.  

 
The presentation currency of the financial statements is the Pound Sterling (£). 

 
The accounts are rounded to the nearest £1. 

 
The Charity is a going concern and there are no material uncertainties casting significant doubt over its ability to 
continue as a going concern 

 
Preparation of consolidated financial statements  
The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the parent charitable company, Fèisean nan Gàidheal and 
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Blas Festival Ltd. All inter-company transactions and year-end balances are removed 
on consolidation. 

 
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty  
Fixed asset net book value and depreciation charges are the areas of the accounts which are affected by significant 
judgements and estimates. The trustees exercise judgement in determining both the useful economic life and the 
likely residual value of the charity's assets. This judgement affects the rates of and charge for depreciation in the 
accounts for the year. It also therefore affects the net book value of the assets in the balance sheet. 

 
Income  
All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the charity has entitlement to the funds, it 
is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably. 

 
Income from government and other grants, whether ‘capital’ grants or ‘revenue’ grants, is recognised when the 
charity has entitlement to the funds, any performance conditions attached to the grants have been met, it is 
probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably and is not deferred 

 
Expenditure  
Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the 
charity to that expenditure, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and 
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has 
been classified under headings that aggregate all cost related to the category. Where costs cannot be directly 
attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use of 
resources. 

 
Grants offered subject to conditions which have not been met at the year end date are noted as a commitment but 
not accrued as expenditure. 

 
Tangible fixed assets  
It is the policy of the charity not to capitalise expenditure unless the cost incurred is over £1,000. 

 
Taxation  
The charity is exempt from corporation tax on its charitable activities. 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued  
 

Fund accounting  
Unrestricted funds can be used in accordance with the charitable objectives at the discretion of the trustees. 

 
Restricted funds can only be used for particular restricted purposes within the objects of the charity.  Restrictions 
arise when specified by the donor or when funds are raised for particular restricted purposes. 

 
Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits  
The charitable company operates a defined contribution pension scheme.  Contributions payable to the charitable 
company's pension scheme are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities in the period to which they relate. 

 
Debtors and creditors  
Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount due after any trade discount offered. Prepayments 
are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due. 

 
Creditors and provisions are recognised where the charity has a present obligation resulting from a past event that 
will probably result in the transfer of funds to a third party and the amount due to settle the obligation can be 
measured or estimated reliably. Creditors and provisions are normally recognised at their settlement amount after 
allowing for any trade discounts due. 

 
2. DONATIONS AND LEGACIES  
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Donations  - 100 

   
 
3. OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES  
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Sale of publications  431 414 
 Instrument bank revenue  3,178 4,509 
 Management charges  112,000 109,000 

   
 115,609 113,923 

   
 
4. INVESTMENT INCOME  
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Deposit account interest  1,113 717 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
5. INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES  
 Core  Blas 
 activities  Training  Festival 
 £ £ £ 
 Grants  767,769 6,000 107,869 
 Training registration fees  - - - 
 Performance fees  - - - 
 Box office / concerts  - - 11,763 
 Other income  5,147 - 2,910 
 Cèilidh Trails - earned income  7,140 - - 
 Drama festivals  1,113 - - 
 Fèisgoil - earned income  - - - 
 Membership fees  4,760 - - 
 Sponsorships  - - - 
 Gaelic Development income  725 - - 

     
 786,654 6,000 122,542 

     
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 Gaelic  Total  Total 
 Fèisgoil  residential  activities  activities 
 £ £ £ £ 
 Grants  99,000 33,000 1,013,638 1,100,429 
 Training registration fees  - - - 290 
 Performance fees  - - - 9,151 
 Box office / concerts  - - 11,763 26,494 
 Other income  - 240 8,297 13,439 
 Cèilidh Trails - earned income  - - 7,140 8,772 
 Drama festivals  - - 1,113 2,356 
 Fèisgoil - earned income  286,461 - 286,461 228,611 
 Membership fees  - - 4,760 4,820 
 Sponsorships  - - - 5,400 
 Gaelic Development income  - - 725 1,540 

       
 385,461 33,240 1,333,897 1,401,302 

       
 
 Grants received, included in the above, are as follows: 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Creative Scotland  546,430 502,000 
 Highland Council  100,663 103,678 
 Comhairle nan Eilean Siar  - 14,800 
 Argyll & Bute Council  20,000 20,000 
 Highland & Islands Enterprise  132,380 147,335 
 Bord na Gàidhlig  152,884 152,116 
 Scottish Government  55,000 48,500 
 Events Scotland  - 110,000 
 An Comunn Gaidhealach  6,281 - 
 South Lanarkshire Council  - 2,000 

   
 1,013,638 1,100,429 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
6. RAISING FUNDS  
 

Other trading activities  
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Instrument bank costs  3,190 1,609 

   
 
7. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES COSTS  
 Grant 
 funding of 
 Direct activities Support 
 Costs (see (see note costs (see 
 note 8) 9) note 10) Totals 
 £ £ £ £ 
 Core activities  302,765 345,818 226,773 875,356 
 Training  6,107 - - 6,107 
 Blas Festival  117,802 - 1,836 119,638 
 Fèisgoil  342,471 - - 342,471 
 Gaelic residential  33,341 - - 33,341 

       
 802,486 345,818 228,609 1,376,913 

       
 
8. DIRECT COSTS OF CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES  
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Staff costs  216,471 203,874 
 Development officers / tutors  6,630 - 
 Child protection costs  8,348 10,945 
 Training  5,107 4,180 
 Resources  7,724 8,403 
 Showcases / International Opportunities  7,636 9,122 
 Fèisgoil - delivery costs  231,710 203,795 
 Archiving project  10,649 5,577 
 Sgoil Shamhraidh  15,437 12,400 
 Meanbh-chuileag / Pantomime  21,144 4,983 
 Tachartasan Comhnaidh  9,904 6,944 
 Project management  2,600 - 
 Meanbh-Fhèis  2,809 545 
 Drama air Chuairt  302 8,684 
 Management charges  112,000 109,000 
 Gaelic language Development  298 - 
 Inter Feis activities  1,451 1,276 
 Blas - Artistes costs  41,207 71,285 
 Blas - Travel and support  14,031 68,566 
 Blas - PA and lighting  13,327 60,503 
 Blas - Venue hire  1,817 1,984 
 Blas - Promotion  14,442 26,870 
 Blas - Project manager  13,170 22,510 
 Blas - Commissions  - 5,036 
 Blas - equipment  - 2,316 
 Blas - Oran Mor Co-ordinator  - 10,000 
 Blas - recording & photography  - 1,912 
 Fèis TV  26,741 11,845 

   
 Carried forward  784,955 872,555 

64



 
 Page 22 continued... 

FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
8. DIRECT COSTS OF CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - continued  
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Brought forward  784,955 872,555 
 Digital Resources  2,445 6,508 
 SG - Support for Feisean  2,099 1,211 
 Year of Coasts & Project  12,987 - 

   
 802,486 880,274 

   
 
9. GRANTS PAYABLE  
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Core activities  345,818 348,193 

   
The total grants paid to institutions during the year was as follows:  

 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Grants to Feisean  261,892 258,591 
 Tasgadh Fund  31,500 31,500 
 Cèilidh Trails grants  52,426 58,102 

   
 345,818 348,193 

   
 
 
10. SUPPORT COSTS  
 Governance 
 Management  Finance  costs  Totals 
 £ £ £ £ 
 Core activities  200,224 165 26,384 226,773 
 Blas Festival  736 - 1,100 1,836 

       
 200,960 165 27,484 228,609 

       
 
11. NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)  
 

Net income/(expenditure) is stated after charging/(crediting):  
 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Auditors' remuneration  5,060 4,788 
 Auditors' remuneration for non audit work  3,120 2,532 
 Depreciation - owned assets  - 5,170 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
12. TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS  
 

There were no trustees' remuneration or other benefits for the year ended 31 March 2020 nor for the year ended 
31 March 2019.  

 
Trustees' expenses  

 
During the year, 5 trustees (2019 - 3 trustees) were reimbursed expenses totalling £700 (2019: £1,065). 

 
13. STAFF COSTS  
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Wages and salaries 291,335 293,784 
 Social security costs 26,760 26,228 
 Other pension costs 14,539 14,508 

   
 332,634 334,520 

   
 

The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows:  
 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 Charitable activities 8 7 
 Support costs 2 3 

   
 10 10 

   
 

No employees received emoluments in excess of £60,000.  
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
14. COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES - GROUP 
 Unrestricted  Restricted  Total 
 fund  funds  funds 
 £ £ £ 

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM  
 Donations and legacies  100 - 100 
 

Charitable activities  
 Core activities  705,110 83,500 788,610 
 Training  5,290 - 5,290 
 Blas Festival  290,775 - 290,775 
 Fèisgoil  286,727 - 286,727 
 Gaelic residential  29,900 - 29,900 
 
 Other trading activities  113,923 - 113,923 
 Investment income  716 1 717 

     
 Total  1,432,541 83,501 1,516,042 
 
 

EXPENDITURE ON  
 Raising funds  1,609 - 1,609 
 

Charitable activities  
 Core activities  805,092 40,170 845,262 
 Training  5,180 - 5,180 
 Blas Festival  289,676 - 289,676 
 Fèisgoil  273,713 45,664 319,377 
 Gaelic residential  27,344 - 27,344 

     
 Total  1,402,614 85,834 1,488,448 
 

     
 NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)  29,927 (2,333) 27,594 
 
 

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS  
 
 Total funds brought forward  203,678 50,833 254,511 
 

     
 TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD  233,605 48,500 282,105 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
14. COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES – CHARITY ONLY 
 
 Unrestricted  Restricted  Total 
 fund  funds  funds 
 £ £ £ 

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM  
 Donations and legacies  100 - 100 
 

Charitable activities  
 Core activities  705,110 83,500 788,610 
 Training  5,290 - 5,290 
 Fèisgoil  286,727 - 286,727 
 Gaelic development  29,900 - 29,900 
 
 Other trading activities  113,923 - 113,923 
 Investment income  716 1 717 

     
 Total  1,141,766 83,501 1,225,267 
 

EXPENDITURE ON  
 Raising funds  1,609 - 1,609 
 

Charitable activities  
 Core activities  804,022 40,170 844,192 
 Training  5,180 - 5,180 
 Fèisgoil  273,713 45,664 319,377 
 Gaelic development  27,344 - 27,344 
 

     
 Total  1,111,868 85,834 1,197,702 
 

     
 NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)  29,898 (2,333) 27,565 
 
 

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS  
 
 Total funds brought forward  205,051 50,833 255,884 
 

     
 TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD  234,949 48,500 283,449 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
15. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY  
 

Fèisean nan Gàidheal owns 100% of the issued share capital of Blas Festival Ltd (SC308889), a company 
registered in Scotland. This company was incorporated to operate an annual arts festival of the same name. 

 
Audited accounts have been filed with the Registrar of Companies and have been consolidated with those of 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal in the group accounts presented here. 

 
A summary of the trading results, as extracted from the audited accounts, for the years to 31 March 2020 and 2019 
are shown below. 

 
 2020  2019  
 £  £  
Turnover  122,542 290,775 
Cost of sales  102,802 270,982 
    
Gross profit  19,740 19,793 
Administrative expenses  16,836 19,764 
Donation to Fèisean nan Gàidheal  2,482 - 
    
Profit / (loss) for year  422 29 
Interest receivable / (payable) for year  - - 
    
 422 29 
Taxation  - - 
    
Profit / (loss) after taxation  422 29 
    
 
Net (liabilities) / assets at 31 March  (921) (1,343) 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
16. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS  
 
 Group 
 Computer 
 equipment 
 £ 
 COST 
 At 1 April 2019 32,870 
 Additions 28,899 

  
 At 31 March 2020 61,769 

  
 DEPRECIATION 
 At 1 April 2019 
 and 31 March 2020 32,870 

  
 NET BOOK VALUE 
 At 31 March 2020 28,899 

  
 At 31 March 2019 - 

  
 
 Charity only 
 Computer 
 equipment 
 £ 
 COST 
 At 1 April 2019 32,870 
 Additions 28,899 

  
 At 31 March 2020 61,769 

  
 DEPRECIATION 
 At 1 April 2019 
 and 31 March 2020 32,870 

  
 NET BOOK VALUE 
 At 31 March 2020 28,899 

  
 At 31 March 2019 - 

  
 
17. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  
  
 
 Group  Charity only 
 31.3.20  31.3.19  31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ £ £ 
 Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 308 - 
 Prepayments 20,853 346 20,853 346 
 Grants receivable 104,076 52,436 104,076 52,436 

       
 124,929 52,782 125,237 52,782 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
18. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  
 
 Group  Charity only 
 31.3.20  31.3.19  31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ £ £ 
 Trade creditors 1,679 - 1,679 - 
 Amounts owed to group undertakings - - - 2,657 
 Social security and other taxes  7,822 9,366 7,822 9,366 
 VAT 705 42 - - 
 Other creditors 6,396 4,500 6,396 - 
 Grants awarded but unpaid 886 - 886 - 
 Accruals and deferred income 6,496 28,250 6,496 28,250 
 Accrued expenses 19,725 20,533 18,625 19,463 

       
 43,709 62,691 41,904 59,736 

       
 
19. LEASING AGREEMENTS  
 

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:  
 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 £ £ 
 Within one year 4,267 21,429 
 Between one and five years 36,568 24,833 

   
 40,835 46,262 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
20. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS – ALL RELATING TO THE GROUP 
 Net 
 movement  At 
 At 1.4.19  in funds  31.3.20 
 £ £ £ 

Unrestricted funds  
 General fund  233,605 54,872 288,477 
 

Restricted funds  
 Development fund  48,500 (23,106) 25,394 
 Devolved fund  - 38,750 38,750 

     
 48,500 15,644 64,144 

     
 TOTAL FUNDS  282,105 70,516 352,621 

     
 

Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:  
 
 Incoming  Resources  Movement 
 resources  expended  in funds 
 £ £ £ 

Unrestricted funds  
 General fund  1,321,869 (1,266,997) 54,872 
 

Restricted funds  
 Tasgadh Fund  35,000 (35,000) - 
 Development fund  55,000 (78,106) (23,106) 
 Devolved fund  38,750 - 38,750 

     
 128,750 (113,106) 15,644 

     
 TOTAL FUNDS  1,450,619 (1,380,103) 70,516 

     
 
 

Comparatives for movement in funds  
 
 Net 
 movement  At 
 At 1.4.18  in funds  31.3.19 
 £ £ £ 

Unrestricted funds  
 General fund  203,678 29,927 233,605 
 

Restricted funds  
 Information and Communication 

Technologies project  
 

5,170 
 

(5,170) 
 

- 
 Development fund  45,663 2,837 48,500 

     
 50,833 (2,333) 48,500 

     
 TOTAL FUNDS  254,511 27,594 282,105 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
20. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued  
 

Comparative net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:  
 
 Incoming  Resources  Movement 
 resources  expended  in funds 
 £ £ £ 

Unrestricted funds  
 General fund  1,432,541 (1,402,614) 29,927 
 

Restricted funds  
 Information and Communication 

Technologies project  
 

- 
 

(5,170) 
 

(5,170) 
 Tasgadh Fund  35,000 (35,000) - 
 Development fund  48,501 (45,664) 2,837 

     
 83,501 (85,834) (2,333) 

     
 TOTAL FUNDS  1,516,042 (1,488,448) 27,594 

     
 

A current year 12 months and prior year 12 months combined position is as follows:  
 
 Net 
 movement  At 
 At 1.4.18  in funds  31.3.20 
 £ £ £ 

Unrestricted funds  
 General fund  203,678 84,799 288,477 
 

Restricted funds  
 Information and Communication 

Technologies project  
 

5,170 
 

(5,170) 
 

- 
 Development fund  45,663 (20,269) 25,394 
 Devolved fund  - 38,750 38,750 

     
 50,833 13,311 64,144 

     
 TOTAL FUNDS  254,511 98,110 352,621 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements - continued 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 
20. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued  
 

A current year 12 months and prior year 12 months combined net movement in funds, included in the above are 
as follows:  

 
 Incoming  Resources  Movement 
 resources  expended  in funds 
 £ £ £ 

Unrestricted funds  
 General fund  2,754,410 (2,669,611) 84,799 
 

Restricted funds  
 Information and Communication 

Technologies project  
 

- 
 

(5,170) 
 

(5,170) 
 Tasgadh Fund  70,000 (70,000) - 
 Development fund  103,501 (123,770) (20,269) 
 Devolved fund  38,750 - 38,750 

     
 212,251 (198,940) 13,311 

     
 TOTAL FUNDS  2,966,661 (2,868,551) 98,110 

     
 
21. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES  
 

During the year Blas Festival Ltd paid management and administration charges to Fèisean nan Gàidheal of 
£15,000 (2019 - £15,000). 

 
At the year end a gift aid donation of £2,482 (2019 - £Nil) is due by Blas Festival Ltd to Fèisean nan Gàidheal. 

 
At the year-end date Blas Festival owed Fèisean Nan Gàidheal £308 (2019 - Fèisean Nan Gàidheal owed Blas 
Festival Ltd £2,657). There are no repayment terms in place and interest is not charged on the balance. 

 
22. FRC ETHICAL STANDARD - PROVISIONS AVAILABLE FOR SMALL ENTITIES  
 

In common with many other businesses of our size and nature we use our auditors to prepare and submit returns 
to the tax authorities and assist with the preparation of the financial statements.  

 
23. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY  
 

There is no ultimate controlling party. 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Consolidated Detailed Statement of Financial Activities 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 Unrestricted Restricted  Total  Total 
 funds funds  funds  funds 
 £ £ £ £ 
 
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS 
 
Donations and legacies 
Donations  - - - 100 
 
Other trading activities 
Sale of publications  431 - 431 414 
Instrument bank revenue  3,178 - 3,178 4,509 
Management charges  112,000 - 112,000 109,000 

       
 115,609 - 115,609 113,923 
 
Investment income 
Deposit account interest  1,113 - 1,113 717 
 
Charitable activities 
Grants  884,888 128,750 1,013,638 1,100,429 
Training registration fees  - - - 290 
Performance fees  - - - 9,151 
Box office / concerts  11,763 - 11,763 26,494 
Other income  8,297 - 8,297 13,439 
Cèilidh Trails - earned income  7,140 - 7,140 8,772 
Drama festivals  1,113 - 1,113 2,356 
Fèisgoil - earned income  286,461 - 286,461 228,611 
Membership fees  4,760 - 4,760 4,820 
Sponsorships  - - - 5,400 
Gaelic Development income  725 - 725 1,540 

       
 1,205,147 128,750 1,333,897 1,401,302 

       
Total incoming resources  1,321,869 128,750 1,450,619 1,516,042 
 
 
EXPENDITURE 
 
Other trading activities 
Instrument bank costs  3,190 - 3,190 1,609 
 
Charitable activities 
Wages  187,079 - 187,079 175,916 
Employer's National Insurance  14,853 - 14,853 13,450 
Pensions  14,539 - 14,539 14,508 
Development officers / tutors  6,630 - 6,630 - 
Child protection costs  8,348 - 8,348 10,945 
Training  5,107 - 5,107 4,180 
Resources  7,724 - 7,724 8,403 
Showcases / International Opportunities  7,636 - 7,636 9,122 
Fèisgoil - delivery costs  206,210 25,500 231,710 203,795 
Carried forward  458,126 25,500 483,626 440,319 
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FÈISEAN NAN GÀIDHEAL 
 
 Detailed Statement of Financial Activities 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 Unrestricted Restricted  Total  Total 
 funds funds  funds  funds 
 £ £ £ £ 
Charitable activities 
Brought forward  458,126 25,500 483,626 440,319 
Archiving project  10,649 - 10,649 5,577 
Sgoil Shamhraidh  15,437 - 15,437 12,400 
Meanbh-chuileag / Pantomime  21,144 - 21,144 4,983 
Tachartasan Comhnaidh  9,904 - 9,904 6,944 
Project management  2,600 - 2,600 - 
Meanbh-Fhèis  2,809 - 2,809 545 
Drama air Chuairt  302 - 302 8,684 
Management charges  108,500 3,500 112,000 109,000 
Gaelic language Development  298 - 298 - 
Inter Feis activities  1,451 - 1,451 1,276 
Blas - Artistes costs  41,207 - 41,207 71,285 
Blas - Travel and support  14,031 - 14,031 68,566 
Blas - PA and lighting  13,327 - 13,327 60,503 
Blas - Venue hire  1,817 - 1,817 1,984 
Blas - Promotion  14,442 - 14,442 26,870 
Blas - Project manager  13,170 - 13,170 22,510 
Blas - Commissions  - - - 5,036 
Blas - equipment  - - - 2,316 
Blas - Oran Mor Co-ordinator  - - - 10,000 
Blas - recording & photography  - - - 1,912 
Fèis TV  17,941 8,800 26,741 11,845 
Digital Resources  2,445 - 2,445 6,508 
SG - Support for Feisean  293 1,806 2,099 1,211 
Year of Coasts & Project  987 12,000 12,987 - 
Grants to institutions  284,318 61,500 345,818 348,193 

       
 1,035,198 113,106 1,148,304 1,228,467 
 
Support costs 
 Management 
 Wages  104,256 - 104,256 117,868 
 Social security  11,907 - 11,907 12,778 
 Office rent  18,727 - 18,727 22,476 
 Insurance  7,501 - 7,501 7,932 
 Light and heat  3,700 - 3,700 4,387 
 Telephone  12,232 - 12,232 12,973 
 Printing, postage & stationery  15,568 - 15,568 17,101 
 Advertising  - - - 282 
 Sundries  6,213 - 6,213 5,001 
 Website  1,624 - 1,624 2,198 
 Staff travel and expenses  16,165 - 16,165 15,660 
 Repairs and renewals  3,067 - 3,067 10,501 
 Depreciation of tangible and heritage assets  - - - 5,170 

       
 200,960 - 200,960 234,327 
 
 Finance 
 Bank charges  165 - 165 177 
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FEISEAN NAN GAIDHEAL 
 
 Detailed Statement of Financial Activities 
 for the Year Ended 31 March 2020 
 31.3.20  31.3.19 
 Unrestricted Restricted  Total  Total 
 funds funds  funds  funds 
 £ £ £ £ 
 Finance 
 Governance costs 
 Auditors' remuneration  5,060 - 5,060 4,788 
 Auditors' remuneration for non audit work  3,120 - 3,120 2,532 
 Legal fees  1,717 - 1,717 5,553 
 Committee expenses  4,471 - 4,471 2,652 
 Annual conference  13,116 - 13,116 8,343 

       
 27,484 - 27,484 23,868 

       
Total resources expended  1,266,997 113,106 1,380,103 1,488,448 

       
Net income  54,872 15,644 70,516 27,594 
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Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
Funding Agreements 
Agenda Item: 3.2020.03(g) 
 
 
Reason for Paper 
To update Board members on the status of the organisation’s main funding agreements. 
 
 
Background 
We are in regular contact with the bodies which fund our work and it is essential that Board members are aware 
of the current status of our agreements with them, especially at this time. 
 
Although the paper on funding agreements at the last Board meeting warned there could be a squeeze on 
funding due to the Coronavirus crisis, I am happy to say that has not been the case so far, to any great extent at 
least.  That said, we shall need to keep a regular, close eye on our financial situation for the rest of the year with 
an expectation that funding may be tighter next year. 
 
 
Funding Agreements 
 
1.  Creative Scotland 
Creative Scotland’s funding has been paid in accordance with our agreement for 2020-21.  
 
I have had two further conversations with Siobhan Anderson since the Board’s last meeting to keep her informed 
of plans and she had been informing us about Creative Scotland training and funding opportunities. 
 
As well as that, Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s Chair had an opportunity to meet with Creative Scotland’s Chair to get 
information about the what the future may hold while Covid-19 affects us. 
 
Information which we received on 9 September from Iain Munro, CEO of Creative Scotland, is in the pages 
following. 
 
2.  Highlands & Islands Enterprise 
HIE funding is being paid to us in accordance with our agreement.  It should be remembered that our HIE 
funding is based on a percentage of what we spend and our costs have been reduced due to the Covid-19 
situation.  Therefore, it may be difficult to draw down all the funding available from HIE. 
 
I had a video meeting with Mairi Buchanan of HIE recently and I have been keeping her informed of funding from 
other sources coming our way which may help us with our projected spend. Mairi has confirmed that we should 
be able to carry forward any claims into next year should we not be able to draw down the full amount available 
for this year. 
 
3.  Bòrd na Gàidhlig 
Funding has been paid as expected in line with our agreement.   
 
As with the teams at Creative Scotland and HIE, Bòrd na Gàidhlig staff have been very supportive during this 
period and several conversations are ongoing regarding collaboration on #cleachdi aig an taigh and other 
initiatives. 
 
Bòrd na Gàidhlig has established a monthly meeting of the Chief officers of the Gaelic organisations and these 
have been useful.  In addition, a meeting was organised between the Bòrd’s Cathraiche and the Chairs of the 
Gaelic organisations at which Anna Murray represented Fèisean nan Gàidheal. 
 
4.  The Highland Council and High Life Highland 
Although we had to wait some time for any information, I am very happy The Highland Council has confirmed 
that we will be receiving the same amount of funding for Fèisean (£37,974) and Blas (£62,869) as we received 
last year. 
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Eilidh Mackenzie has had various conversations with Norman Bolton of High Life Highland, who looks after the 
Highland schools YMI contract.   
 
There has been an overall cur to the YMI funding which local authorities are to receive.  Although Norman Bolton 
was at first hopeful this would not impact on our allocation, he has since come back asking that we prepare a 
budget based on an allocation of £12,000 less than last year.  
 
It should be remembered that we already took a cut of £60,000 two years ago, so there will be a need for further 
discussions regarding this. 
 
5.  Comhairle nan Eilean Siar 
Although we had intended to set up a conversation with the Comhairle to discuss collaborative working, I have 
not yet progressed this. 
 
6.  Argyll & Bute Council 
As confirmed verbally at the last Board meeting Argyll & Bute Council agreed to a contract worth £18,450 and the 
full sum has been paid to us. 
 
7.  Scottish Government 
We expect some support from the Scottish Government in 2020-21 although the sum available is not as yet 
confirmed.   
 
We passed on some outline plans to the officer who deals with us but we are aware that there has been a review 
going on of all government budgets.   
 
 
Action Required 
Board members are asked to note the up to date position in relation to funding agreements. 
 
 

Arthur Cormack 
Chief Executive 

September 2020 
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9 September 2020 
 

Dear Colleague, 
 

I’m writing to provide an update on the current funding situation, both in terms of some Covid-19 
emergency funds that we are managing on behalf of the Scottish Government, and in terms of 
providing as much clarity as possible, at this point in time, on RFO funding arrangements. We are all 
operating in a continuously shifting environment so I will be as clear as possible based on what we 
know now or can reasonably anticipate at this time. 
   

I fully appreciate the stressful situation that everyone working in the arts, screen and creative 
industries is having to deal with, the ongoing need for emergency assistance, and the pressures 
being caused by uncertainty about the longer term. Every effort is being made to lessen the impacts 
of Covid-19 as much as possible and to deliver emergency support within the resources available to 
us. In the last six months since the start of lockdown restrictions, this has included: 
 

• The introduction of the Bridging Bursary programme, which delivered £4.3m of emergency 
support to more than 2,200 people working in Scotland’s creative sector, this includes a 
dedicated bursary programme for the Screen sector, which delivered £1.4m support to 665 
individuals. 

• Adapting £8.5m of existing funds to continue to support the development of creative practice 
and the creation of new work through the Open Fund 

• The launch of a £12.5m fund to provide relief to performing arts venues in Scotland 
• The Digital Pivot programme, to help organisations and individuals in the creative sector 

make best use of digital platforms during the pandemic 
• Participation in the £20m Creative, Tourism & Hospitality Enterprises Hardship Fund for small 

creative, tourism and hospitality companies not in receipt of other COVID-19 business grants 
• Launch of a £2.2m Grassroots Music Venues Sustainability Fund 

  

Specifically for Regularly Funded Organisations (RFOs), we continue to be flexible and honour the 
current year funding arrangements to 31 March 2021. Then, as already communicated, we have 
made a commitment to a fourth year from 1 April 2021. While it is planned to provide Regular 
Funding in the fourth year at a level equal to the average of the first 3 years, this will not be 
confirmed until the Scottish Government announces Creative Scotland’s funding in the 2021/22 
budget. The date of this announcement has not been set and is expected to be in late 2020 or early 
2021. 2021/22 Regular Funding will be subject to the agreement of a funding contract based on a 
mutually agreed plan of activity. 
  

In addition to the above measures, the First Minister announced on 28 August a further £59m of 
emergency funding for culture and heritage to address the ongoing impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic, including £31.5m for culture through Creative Scotland.  We are now working fast on the 
development and delivery of a range of emergency funds: 
  

• £3.5m Independent Cinema Recovery and Resilience Fund - announced last week 
• £15m Culture Organisations and Venues Recovery Fund - the guidance and criteria will be 

published tomorrow, 10 September and then open for applications on 17 September 
• £5m Creative Freelancer Hardship Funds - we will be issuing a call-out on 11 September for 

partner organisations to work with us in its distribution to ensure we reach the widest range 
of people most effectively 

• £5m Sustaining Creative Practice Fund - £3.5m to be delivered through our existing Open 
Fund, and £1.5m for a new Culture Collective programme to connect freelancers and 
communities across Scotland 

• £3m Youth Arts Fund to ensure creative opportunities for children and young people continue 
to exist across Scotland despite the Covid-19 pandemic - details will be published next week. 
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We expect there will be a lot of interest and significant demand, including from RFO’s, for the 
Culture Organisations and Venues Recovery Fund. Its primary aim is to protect jobs and to support 
the sustainability of organisations threatened by insolvency in the short to medium term and will 
include support for galleries, theatre and dance companies, large music venues, comedy venues, 
nightclubs, production facilities and artists workspaces experiencing critical financial problems that 
threaten insolvency or significant job losses due to the impact of Covid-19. 
  

It is important to note that we are delivering these funds on behalf of the Scottish Government and 
are required to address the parameters set by them. In some cases, we are temporarily being asked 
to provide emergency support to sectors that we have not previously supported - an illustration of 
the unprecedented times we are living in and the extent of public support being sought to address 
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
	

The emergency funding being made available represents a significant and very welcome allocation of 
funds from both the UK and Scottish Governments, underlining the value of culture and creativity 
amongst our political leaders. However, the distressing reality is that the scale and severity of the 
challenges are so great that it is clear that, even with the emergency funding being offered, the 
survival of every cultural organisation and every job cannot be assured and the pandemic will, 
inevitably, have an impact that none of us would wish.  
	

Looking to the longer term, prior to the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, we had undertaken a great 
deal of work as regards a review of our current funding model with a view to establishing a new 
approach. The Covid-19 emergency and its devastating impact on the creative and culture sector in 
Scotland, and on society as a whole, has meant that all of our resources and attention has been 
diverted to helping people and organisations in the sector address this ongoing crisis. 
  

Delivering the new emergency funds will be our top priority for the next few months however, we 
will revisit the review of our funding approach as soon as possible, recognising this will need to be 
done in the light of the changed circumstances we face, not least in terms of future public finances.  
  

How we reset creativity and culture in Scotland in response to Covid-19 needs to be a collective 
effort and we have been discussing this with colleagues from sector representative bodies the 
Scottish Contemporary Art Network, the Federation of Scottish Theatre, Publishing Scotland, Arts 
and Business Scotland, Craft Scotland, Cultural Alliance, Culture Counts, Festivals Edinburgh, 
Literature Alliance and the Scottish Music Industry Association. We are working with them to 
establish a range of forums in the latter part of this year to bring the creative and culture sector 
together with wider partners to discuss the longer term challenges and what we need to do together 
to adapt to a new future. More on this will be communicated shortly. 
  

In the meantime, an important piece of research that I’d like to bring to your attention is the 
Audience Intention work that we have been undertaking.  This is research amongst the general 
public with the aim of understanding attitudes towards engagement with culture – for example 
attending cultural events and venues – and how these are changing in the light of the Covid-19 
pandemic.  This research is being conducted in four waves and the results from the first wave have 
been published on our website today. The research tells us that 81% of the Scottish population are 
still interested in attending cultural events, however, it also highlights areas where audiences have 
increased concern due to Covid, information that is very useful as the culture sector plans on re-
opening to the public. 
  

The challenges presented by the Covid-19 pandemic are only too real and are not going to go away 
quickly or easily but please do be assured that Creative Scotland will continue to play its part in 
strongly advocating for the sector and to ensure that as much support as possible flows to artists, 
freelancers and organisations as quickly and as comprehensively as possible. 
  

We will continue to issue information and updates as soon as we have them across our various 
channels, so please follow us on social media, particularly Twitter and Facebook; check our 
website regularly; and keep an eye out for regular updates from myself and my colleagues.  We are 
also providing a comprehensive update on a monthly basis to the Culture Committee at the Scottish 
Parliament, the latest of which can be found here. 
  

Best wishes, 
 
 
 
 
Iain Munro 
Chief Executive 
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Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Plan: Annual Progress Report 
Number on Agenda: 3.2020.05(a) 
 
 
Reason for paper 
To provide Board members with an update on the implementation of our agreed Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 
(EDI) Plan. 
 
 
Background 
Board members will recall we agreed an EDI Plan with Creative Scotland in September 2018 which outlined actions 
we intended to take to highlight and improve EDI issues within our programme and working practices. 
 
An annual progress report was promised, which is following, outlining the delivery of actions to date. 
 
 
Progress to date 
As can be seen from the report,  in some cases we have achieved targets earlier than expected.  Progress is still 
needed to fully deliver a small number of actions but, with 6 months still to run, we are fairly confident of achieving 
the targets we set ourselves before the end of March 2021. 
 
Although there has been progress over the past year, more work remains to be done with the Fèisean to raise 
awareness of EDI issues and encourage them to undertake training. 
 
 
Next steps 
We will continue to deliver our EDI Plan with a view to achieving as many of the targets as possible by 31 March 
2021.  
 
Our current EDI plan runs until then to coincide with Creative Scotland’s funding cycle.  However, all the indications 
are that organisations receiving regular funding from Creative Scotland will have their funding agreement extended 
by a year.   
 
It is, therefore, possible we may need to develop an interim EDI Plan for 2021-22.  An updated EDI Plan is part of our 
annual agreement process with Creative Scotland and we would look to set realistic targets for the final year of 
funding in the current cycle. 
 
 
Action Required 
Board members are asked to: 
(a) Note the progress to date in implementing the EDI Plan 
(b) Discuss any points they wish in relation to the implementation of Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s EDI Plan 

and 
(c) Note the possibility of a requirement to develop a one-year EDI Plan for 2021-22. 
 
 

 Arthur Cormack 
CEO 

September 2020 
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Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
EDI Plan: Progress Report, September 2020 

 
Tasks  Lead Measures of success 
Include EDI questionnaires in recruitment 
processes for staff and Board members 

Executive 
Manager 

Ongoing availability of data that will 
allow better EDI monitoring over the 
long term 

Target and date Questionnaires completed as and when new staff recruited  
PROGRESS Applicants are asked to complete questionnaires when applying for posts. 
 
 

Conduct a survey among any new Board 
members to collect baseline data on EDI 

CEO Availability of baseline data for all 
current Board members 

Target and date 8 new Board member questionnaires returned by 31 December 2020 
PROGRESS 9 Board members have completed EDI questionnaires since 2018. 
 
 

Continue to collect data from committee 
members when applying for grants, tutors 
and contractors when engaged by Fèisean 
nan Gàidheal for the first time 

Executive 
Manager 

Better data available for 50% of 
committees, grant applicants, tutors 
and contractors (around 300 
individuals) 

Target and date Ongoing survey with 150 responses by 31 December 2019 
PROGRESS There have been 142 responses to date.  This is ongoing and all Fèisean, 

Tasgadh and Maoin nan Ealan Gàidhlig grant applicants are asked to complete 
our EDI questionnaire to ensure we continue to gather relevant data. 

 
 

Involve young people in curation and 
running of Year of Young People events 

Executive 
Manager 

3 Youth Ambassadors involved in all 
aspects of planning plus around 20 
young people involved in working 
alongside crews and promoters 
involved in events. 

Target and date To be implemented by 30 September 2018 
PROGRESS Four young ambassadors were involved in all aspects of planning for Year of 

Young People events and 54 young people worked alongside the crews on the 
various events.  

 
 

Increase the number of young people 
involved in decision-making within Fèisean 
nan Gàidheal 

Development 
Manager 

2 young people recruited to Blas 
Programming Group and focus group 
of 10 young people consulted 
regularly on plans for various activities 
within our programme. 

Target and date To be implemented by 30 September 2019 
PROGRESS Two young people have been recruited to the Board of Fèisean nan Gàidheal. 

Another two young people have been involved regularly in various aspects of 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s work as informal apprentices and this work has led to 
accreditation through, for example, the DoE awards scheme. 

 
 

Publish our EDI Plan 2018-21 and highlight 
the measures within it to Board, staff and Fèis 
organisers 

Business Officer Plan available online and its 
content promoted 

Target and date Plan published as soon as it is agreed by Creative Scotland 
PROGRESS Our EDI Plan was published on our website in September 2018. 
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Offer awareness-raising training on EDI issues 
to Fèisean nan Gàidheal Board members 
when they join 

CEO All Board members having 
undergone training 

Target and date 8 new Board members trained by 31 December 2020 
PROGRESS All new Board members have been made aware of our EDI Plan and will be 

invited to undertake online training through ACAS.  
 
 

Offer awareness-raising training on EDI issues 
to Fèisean nan Gàidheal staff team, 
particularly new recruits 

CEO All staff having undergone 
training and are more aware of 
EDI issues 

Target and date 12 staff members trained by 31 March 2019 
PROGRESS All 12 staff during the period undertook ACAS online training on EDI issues and 

all new staff are required to do so. 
 
 

Offer awareness-raising training on EDI issues 
to Fèis tutors as part of normal tutor training 

CEO 30 tutors have had EDI training 
with more on a regular basis 

Target and date 15 tutors by 31 March 2019 
Further 15 tutors by 31 March 2020 
Ongoing as tutor training takes place thereafter 

PROGRESS • 10 Tutors trained in 2019 
• 11 Tutors trained in 2020 
• Specific EDI training has not been embedded in tutor training as yet but 

tutors have been invited to undertake EDI training online.  
 
 

Through conditions of grant, encourage 
volunteer Fèis organisers, and support them 
financially, to undertake online EDI lessons 
using resources such as those available 
through ACAS 

Development 
Officers 

100 volunteers having 
undertaken an online course 
with greater awareness of EDI 
issues 

Target and date Volunteers undertaking online training by 31 March 2021 
PROGRESS Volunteers will be invited to undertake online ACAS training. 

 
 

Ongoing online streaming of events with 
monitoring of viewer information  

CEO Events streamed on a regular 
basis lead to an increase in the 
number of people accessing our 
work digitally and our ability to 
report on user characteristics 

Target and date 6 streamed events per annum between 2018 and 2021 
PROGRESS 36 events have been streamed between 2018 and 2020 to date. 
 
 

Establish online music lessons with 
monitoring of user information from the start 

Development 
Manager 

Lessons available with the ability 
to monitor uptake and report on 
user characteristics 

Target and date An initial 10 lessons in 4 disciplines to be available in Gaelic and English versions 
by 31 December 2018. 

PROGRESS These have been published and have been made available free of charge 
during the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 
 

Develop further online music lessons with 
integral monitoring of user information  

Development 
Manager 

Further uptake of lessons with 
the ability to promote their 
availability to people from a 
range of backgrounds 
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Target and date A further 10 lessons in the original 4 disciplines to be available in Gaelic and 
English versions by 30 June 2019. 
A further 10 lessons in the original 4 disciplines and the second 4 disciplines to 
be available in Gaelic and English versions by 31 March 2020. 

PROGRESS Now that the original lessons are online, a further two courses have been 
recorded one of which is now available.  We are tendering contracts for further 
lessons to be recorded by December 2020.  While this target has not been met, 
as yet, but we are confident it will be. 

 
 

Establish two new Fèisean in HIE fragile areas  CEO 2 new Fèisean established 
Target and date 2 new Fèisean by 31 March 2021 
PROGRESS • Fèis Thatha in Perthshire has been established and has run its first event. 

• There is interest from a group in Ayr who wish to establish a Fèis there. 
 
 

Year of Young People events involve large 
numbers of young (under 26) performers 

CEO 700 young people have the 
opportunity to participate in 
Òran Mòr 

Target and date To be completed by 30 September 2018 
PROGRESS 1,109 young people were involved in the Òran Mòr event. 
 
 

Up to 200 free tickets to be available to young 
people from areas of social deprivation for 
Year of Young People events 

CEO Uptake of 100 young people 
from areas of social deprivation 
attending Òran Mòr 

Target and date To be completed by 30 September 2018 
PROGRESS 211 tickets were distributed through Barnardo’s, MFR Cash for Kids, Nansen 

Highland, The Highland Council social care team and HIMRA.  Around 70 
people attended using the tickets provided. 

 
 

Increase of intergenerational work between 
young people and older people in relation to 
activities in our programme 

Development 
Manager 

6 young singers working, in 
2018-20, with older people to 
collect and research songs in 
communities through Fuaran 
project 
 

12 young people annually 
involved in work with older 
people in communities to gain a 
knowledge of a variety of 
activities learning through the 
medium of Gaelic through 5 
Latha 
 

300 pupils, by March 2021, 
engaged in Gaelic language 
enrichment activities through 
our Beairteas scheme 

Target and date Work on an annual basis to be implemented fully by 31 March 2021 
PROGRESS • 21 young singers have been involved in Fuaran during 2020 and 2021. 

• 15 young people took part in 5 Latha 2019. The 2020 event had to be 
cancelled due to Covid-19 restrictions but our target had already been met. 

• 278 pupils have benefitted from Beairteas sessions to date.  
• 213 adults and young people have interacted in Café Bheairteis sessions. 
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Tour of a drama performance relating to 
Gaelic culture for schools where Gaelic is 
taught as a second language 

Fèisgoil Manager Greater awareness of Gaelic 
culture for 800 school pupils 
who experience the show 

Target and date A tour undertaken by Meanbh-Chuileag annually between 2018 and 2021 
PROGRESS Between 2018 and 2019, 1,107 pupils in schools where Gaelic is taught as a 

second language saw performances of the Sporan productions.  2020 
performances have not taken place yet, but will be online due to the Covid-19 
restrictions. 

 
 

Increase in the number of pupils across 
Scotland engaging with Gaelic language and 
culture in school 

Fèisgoil Manager 1,500 school pupils with an 
awareness of Gaelic language 
and culture 

Target and date Gaelic lessons in schools in 8 local authority areas by March 2021 
PROGRESS 3,977 school pupils have been learning Gaelic and about Gaelic culture and 

work has gone on in 4 local authority areas. 
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Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
Programme for the AGM and Conference 2020 
Agenda Item: 3.2020.05(b) 
 

 
Reason for Paper 
To provide information to Board members on the programme for the Annual Conference and AGM. 

 
 

CLÀR 
 

PROGRAMME 
 

14.00 
 

Lucinda Geoghegan  
NYCoS - Stiùiriche Leasachadh Chruthachail 
 

Lucinda Geoghegan  
NYCoS - Creative Learning Director 

15.00 Bùithtean-obrach – Taghadh 
1. Puirt le Ailean MacEanraig 
2. Òraid le Òrain Bharraich - ri dhearbhadh 
3. Geamaichean is Òrain nan Tràth-

bhliadhnaichean le Eilidh NicCarmaig 
agus Ceitidh NicCoinnich 

4. Gnàthasan-cainnt le Ailig Bhaltois 
5. A’ Ghàidhlig ann am Fèisean nan Eilean le 

Art MacCarmaig 
 

Workshop – Choices  
1. Tunes with Allan Henderson 
2. Barra Songs - tbc  
3. Early Years Games and Songs with 

Eilidh Cormack & Katie Mackenzie 
 

4. Idioms with Alec MacDonald 
5. Gaelic in the Island Fèisean with Arthur 

Cormack 

16.00 Bùithtean-obrach – Taghadh 
1. Puirt le Ailean MacEanraig 
2. Òraid le Òrain Bharraich - ri dhearbhadh 
3. Geamaichean is Òrain nan Tràth-

bhliadhnaichean le Eilidh NicCarmaig 
agus Ceitidh NicCoinnich 

4. Gnàthasan-cainnt le Ailig Bhaltois 
5. Cothrom Còmhraidh leis na h-Oifigearan 

Leasachaidh 
 

Workshop – Choices 
1. Tunes with Allan Henderson 
2. Barra Songs - tbc  
3. Early Years Games and Songs with 

Eilidh Cormack & Katie Mackenzie 
 

4. Idioms with Alec MacDonald 
5. Catch-up with your Development 

Officer 

17.00 Bùth-obrach 
A’ teagasg air-loidhne - Tinderbox 

Workshop 
Online teaching – Tinderbox 
 

19.00 A’ Choinneamh Bhliadhnail Annual General Meeting  
  

19.30 Fèis Bharraigh @ 40 
Cailean MacIlleathain a’ còmhradh ri cuid de 
dhaoine a bha an sàs ann am Fèis Bharraigh a 
stèidheachadh 

Fèis Bharraigh @ 40 
Cailean Maclean leading a discussion with a 
panel of some of the people involved in 
establishing Fèis Bharraigh 
 

20:00 Cèilidh air-loidhne 
Taghadh de sheinneadairean is luchd-ciùil a’ 
comharrachadh gu bheil Fèis Bharraigh air a 
bhith a’ dol 40 bliadhna, Fèis Eilean an Fhraoich 
30 is Fèis Taigh Dhonnchaidh 20 

Online Cèilidh  
A selection of singers and musicians marking 
Fèis Bharraigh’s 40th, Fèis Eilean an Fhraoich’s 
30th and Fèis Taigh Dhonnchaidh’s 20th 
anniversaries 

 
Action Required 
Board members are asked to note the arrangements for the AGM and Conference. 
 

Anne Willoughby 
Executive Manager 

September 2020 
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Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
Annual Report 2020 
Agenda Item: 3.2020.05(c) 
 
 
Background 
Fèisean nan Gàidheal’s Annual Report for 2020 will be sent out electronically, when ready, giving members the 
opportunity to read it in advance of the Board meeting. 
 
 
Action Required 
Board members will be asked to note the content of the Annual Report and approve it prior to the AGM.  
 
 

Arthur Cormack 
CEO 

September 2020 
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Fèisean nan Gàidheal 
Taigh a’ Mhill 
Port Rìgh 
An t-Eilean Sgitheanach 
IV51 9BZ 
 
Fòn 01478 613355 
Post-d brath@feisean.org 
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